
 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

TOWN HALL 

DUKE STREET 

BARROW-IN-FURNESS 

 
 

 
Wednesday 17 February 2021 

 

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the  
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise. 

 
To:  The Members of Barrow Borough Council 
 
Mr Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a virtual meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

to be held on THURSDAY, 25TH FEBRUARY, 2021 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the 

transaction of the business specified below. 

 

 
 

Chief Executive 
_______________ 

 
Business 

 
VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube  
 

 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020. 
 
Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting on to the Barrow Borough Council 
YouTube Channel and can be watched live via the below link. 
 
The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items. 
 
To view the meeting online click this link 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 

2.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 To consider any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered as 
matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972. [Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special circumstances” 
(which will be recorded in the minutes), the Chair of the meeting is of the opinion that 
the item should be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of items 
on this Agenda and to consider any dispensations..  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, they 
are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other registrable 
interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  
(It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, to 
declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests which 
they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other 
interests.   

 
4.   MINUTES 

 
 To confirm the Minutes of the Council’s proceedings held on 26th January, 2021. 

 
5.   ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
 To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid Service. 

 
6.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 

present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than 
5pm two working days before the meeting. Information on how to make the 
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk 
or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at (jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by 
telephone on (07825206525). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been received from 
members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public. 

 
7.   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT -  HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2021-

2022 AND BUDGET  PROPOSALS 2021-2022 
 

 To receive a report from the Executive Committee on the Housing Revenue Account 
2021-2022 and Budget Proposals 2021-2022 and consider recommendations. 

 
8.   COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2021-2022 

 
 To set the Council Tax for the year commencing 1st April, 2021. 

 
 
 

 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

9.   APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON(S) 
 

 To consider the appointment of Independent Person(s). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 
A VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at 5.30 pm. 
on Tuesday the 26th day of January, 2021. 
 
PRESENT:- Councillor Hamilton (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, Blezard, Brook, Burley, Burns, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards, 
H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall (Minute Nos. 83 - 89 only), Husband, Johnston, 
McClure, McEwan, McLeavy, Maddox, Mooney, Morgan, Nott, Pemberton, 
Preston, Roberts, Robson, Ronson, Shirley, C. Thomson, M. A. Thomson, Wall 
and Worthington. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head 
of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Jon Huck (Democratic Services 
Manager) and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member 
Support). 
 
76 – Apologies for Absence 
 
An apology for absence had been submitted from Councillor Seward. 
 
77 – Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
78 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the Extraordinary meetings held on 8th and 16th December, 
2020 were taken as read and confirmed. 
 
79 – Announcements 
 
The Leader of the Council made the following announcement:- 
 

Bay Unitary Proposal 
 
“Further to special meetings of ourselves, Lancaster and SLDC, the 
Council’s full proposal had been submitted to Government on 9th 
December, 2020. 
 
Since then, there had been an exchange of correspondence with Paul 
Rowsell and further communications with the Fire and Rescue Authorities, 
Police and PCCS.  We had been asked to provide further assessment on 
the impact on Fire and Police Services and that had been done and 
submitted by the deadline of 14th January.  Copies of the further 
assessment had been circulated to Members and had also been published 
on the Council’s website. 
 
We are now awaiting the decision as to whether the Secretary of State will 
consult on our proposal. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
Work is ongoing, including to promote wide local and regional understanding 
of the proposal amongst the public, local and strategic Stakeholders and 
continued development of the proposal, particularly in regard to duties, 
powers and services that would be exercised by a Unitary Council. 
 
The Council would continue to raise the awareness of the Bay proposal and 
hope for a positive response from Government to take it to the next stages”. 

 
80 – Public Participation 
 
No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting. 
 
81 – Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 
The Director of Resources had submitted a report requesting confirmation of the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme for the financial year 2021-2022; 1st April, 2021 
to 31st March, 2022.  She advised that each billing authority must adopt a local 
scheme by 31st January, prior to the start of the financial year. 
 
Since 1st April, 2013, the Council had operated a Local Council Tax Reduction 
scheme (also referred to as Council Tax Support) that mirrored the Council Tax 
Benefit regime.  This maintained the links to the Housing Benefit system that 
would have applied to Council Tax Benefit pre 1st April, 2013.  The adopted 
Local Scheme ensured that those receiving Council Tax Support received the 
same amount as they would have under the Council Tax Benefit regime. 
 
The cost of Council Tax Support is shared between the major preceptors (This 
Council, Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Cumbria).   
 
As at October 2020, £6.5m of Council Tax Support had been awarded.  The 
Borough Council share of that was £823k based on the 2020-2021 precepts.  
The number of accounts where Council Tax Support had been awarded was 
around £6,300 compared to 6,000 at the same point last year.  It was likely that 
the increase had been influenced by Covid-19 impacting household incomes.  It 
had been noted that there may be further impact to come once the Furlough 
Scheme ends. 
 
It had been noted that taking into account the assumed amount of funding for 
Council Tax Support incorporated into the financial settlement, it was estimated 
that the cost to the Council would be £259k.  That shortfall was higher than the 
assumption in the Medium Term Financial Plan which would be revised. 
 
It had been recommended that the current Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme continued for 2021-2022.  The alternative and associated risks 
supporting the recommendation had been outlined in the Director of Resource’s 
report. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts and it 
was, 
 
RESOLVED:- To agree the continuation of the current Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2021-2022. 
 
82 – Minutes of the Lancaster and South Cumbria Joint Committee 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the Minutes of the Lancaster and South Cumbria Joint 
Committee from 21st October, 2020 be noted. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
 
83 – Planning 
 
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 6th and 27th October, 17th November and 15th December, 2020 and 19th 
January, 2021 be received. 
 
84 – Licensing Regulatory 
 
Councillor Callister advised that the meetings of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee due to have been held on 8th October and 5th November 2020 and 
21st January, 2021 had been cancelled. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee held on 10th December be received. 
 
85 – Licensing 
 
Councillor Callister advised that the meetings of the Licensing Committee due to 
have been held on 8th October and 5th November 2020 and 21st January, 2021 
had been cancelled. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 
10th December be received. 
 
86 – Executive 
 
Councillor Brook advised that there had been no recommendations referred to 
Council from the meeting held on 14th October, 2020. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



The recommendations of the Extraordinary meeting held on 5th November, 
2020 had been reported to the Extraordinary Council meeting held on 5th 
November, 2020. 
 
The recommendations of the meeting held of 11th November, 2020 and the 
Extraordinary meeting held on 8th December, 2020 had been reported to the 
Extraordinary Council meeting held on 8th December, 2020. 
 
The recommendations of the meeting held on 16th December on the Statement 
of Licensing Policy had been reported to the Extraordinary Council meeting held 
on 16th December, 2020. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Brook, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 
16th December, 2020 be received and that the recommendation regarding Local 
Council Tax Support contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda Item 
No. 7 as outlined in Minute No. 81 above. 
 
87 – Audit and Governance 
 
Councillor Burns advised that meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee 
due to have been held on 18th December, 2020 had been cancelled. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 1st October, 2020 be received. 
 
88 – Overview and Scrutiny 
 
It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and 
 
RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 29th October and 3rd December 2020 and 20th January, 
2021 be received. 
 
89 – Questions to the Leader of the Council 
 
There had been no questions submitted to the Leader of the Council under 
notice as required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4. 
 
The meeting closed at 5.48 pm. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 

COUNCIL 

Date of Meeting: 25th February, 2021 

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
The following recommendations are submitted for consideration by the Council:- 
 

Executive Committee – 10th February, 2021 
 

1.0 Housing Revenue Account 2021-2022 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report of the Assistant Director - Housing (attached) was 

to agree a Housing Revenue Account Budget for the 2021-2022 financial 
year and to provide the Expected Outturn Budget and balance for the current 
year. 

 

1.2 Recommendations:- 
 
 To recommend the Council:- 
 
1. To note the information provided within the report; 
 
2. To note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/2021 would be a surplus 

of £161,390 including the original budgeted contribution to Earmarked 
Reserves of £105,720; 

 
3. To note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/2021; 
 
4. To agree the basis on which the 2021/2022 draft Budget had been 

proposed in points 3.6.1 to 3.6.4 of the report; 
 
5. To agree dwelling rent increase of 1.5% as outlined in point 3.7 of the 

report; 
 
6. To agree garage dwelling rent increase of 1.5% as outlined in point 3.8 

of the report; 
 
7. To agree as outlined in points 3.9.1 to 3.9.5 of the report, the other 

additional considerations; and 
 
8. To agree the approach to priorities for the year 2021/2022 raised in 

points 3.10.1 to 3.10.05 of the report. 
 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
 

2.0 Budget Proposals 2021-2022 
 
2.1 The Committee considered a detailed report (attached) from the Director of 

Resources regarding the budget proposals for 2021-2022 and the decisions 
associated with budget setting.  The report also set out the Council Tax 
requirement for 2021-2022 and also the Pay Policy for 2020-2021. 

 

2.2 Recommendations:-  
 

To recommend the Council:- 
 

1.  To set the 2021-2022 General Fund revenue budget as £7,238,320 
including £141,640 for parish precepts; 

 

2. To agree a Council Tax increase of £5 on Band D which is equivalent to 
2.08% on all Council Tax bands (paragraph 3.4.8 refers); 

 

3. To agree the use of £3,792,850 of earmarked reserves (paragraph 3.3.2 
refers); 

 

4. To note the budget pressures set out in paragraph 3.8 and: 
 

  a. To agree to set aside £0.5m for the delivery of major projects 
within earmarked reserves; 

 

 b. To agree to transfer £624k between reserves to increase the 
Transformation Reserve; 

 

5. To agree the fees and charges set out in paragraph 3.6.2; 
 

6. To approve the Pay Policy for 2021-2022; and 
 

7. To agree to release £0.4m of the General Fund balance to met Covid-19 
pressures on the Council budget beyond those already incorporated in 
the proposed 2021-2022 budget. 

 

 
Background Papers 
 
Nil. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

 Housing Management Forum  

28th January, 2021 

Housing Revenue Account 2021/2022 
 

   

Report from:   Janice Sharp, Assistant Director - Housing 

Report Author:  Janice Sharp, Assistant Director - Housing 

Wards:    All 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
 

 The purpose of the Report is to agree a Housing Revenue Account Budget for 
the 2021/22 financial year and provide the Expected Outturn Budget and balance 
for the current year.  

 
2.0  Recommendations  

 
2.1 It is recommended that Housing Management Forum recommend to 

Executive Committee that they: 

 

(1)   Note the information provided in the Report. 

 

(2)   Note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/21 is a surplus of £161,390 

including the original budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves 

of £105,720. 

 

(3)   Note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2020/21. 

 

(4)   Agree the basis on which the 2021/22 draft Budget is proposed in 3.6.1 

to 3.6.4. 

 

(5) Agree dwelling rent increase of 1.5% outlined in 3.7. 

 

(6) Agree garage rent increase of 1.5% outlined in 3.8. 

 

(7) Agree as outlined in 3.9.1 to 3.9.5 other additional considerations. 

 

(8)   Agree the approach to priorities for year 2021/22 raised in 3.10.1 to 

3.10.5. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.0 Background and Proposals  
 
3.1 2020/21 saw the first year of the ‘new rent policy’, which permits social rents to 

be increased by CPI (based on September of the previous year) plus 1%. This 
‘new rent policy’ is in place for at least five years including the current year. 
Whilst this is positive in terms of generating income, the continued sale of 
Council properties through Right to Buy and general increased costs/inflation will 
remain a challenge for the Housing Revenue Account.  

 
3.2  Universal Credit continues to impact on the Housing Revenue Account’s income, 

and the recovery from the ongoing pandemic the country has been faced with 
will also bring challenges to the Housing Revenue Account’s income over the 
coming financial year.  

 
3.3  The Council will remain focused on controlling expenditure and looking at ways 

to generate income wherever possible.  Mitigating the impact of the pandemic on 
the service’s income stream will be of paramount importance as we move into 
2021/22.  This will be achieved by the continuing hard work of officers to engage 
with Tenants to resolve issues and to come to affordable arrangements to repay 
arrears alongside effective signposting to other support services, who can help 
those affected by Covid-19 to rebuild their lives and apply for the necessary 
benefits to support them in paying their rent/reducing their water charges. 

 
3.4 Expected Outturn Budget 2020/21 
 

The outturn for the year forecast a net surplus of £161,390 a revision to the 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £105,720 
 

3.5  Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2020/21 
 

The above is likely to result in the following movement in balances. 
 

3.5.1 Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2020:  £2,842,445.67 
   

All Capital Schemes are on target for year-end and therefore no change is 
expected to the above reserve. 
 

3.5.2   Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 2020:  £2,768,314 

 Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                    £105,720 

 Forecast surplus                                                             £55,670 

 Estimated Balance at year end                                       £2,929,704 

 Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2020:                       £1,000,000 

           There is no change expected in the fund balance in year. 
 
3.5.3 Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2020: £8,135,570 

 Forecast Provision 2020/21 £816,520  

 Provision at year end £8,952,090 

Page 12

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.6 HRA Budget 2021/22 Proposal 
 
 In proposing the budget for 2021/22 – attached at Appendix 1 – the following 

factors have been taken into account: 
 
3.6.1 An increase by CPI plus 1% on rental increase for residential dwellings. 
 
3.6.2 There is a significant shift from revenue to capital improvement schemes in 

2020/21 in the Housing Maintenance Budget.  This has resulted in a budgeted 
contribution to earmarked reserves in year of £83,760. 

 
3.6.3 A contingency £50,000 has been retained in the draft budget which is referenced 

below. 
 
3.6.4 Bad debt provision increased by £148,600 to reflect the arrears of current and 

former Tenants. 
 
3.7    Dwelling Rents 
 
3.7.1  The current Rent Policy permits social rents to be increased by CPI + 1%.  For 

the 2021/22 financial year, this means an overall increase to social rents of 1.5% 
(CPI 0.5% + 1%).  The proposed dwelling rents for 2021/22 (based on an 
average) are shown below: 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7.2 The expenditure within the HRA is agreed through the democratic process.   

However, occasions arise which result in under and overspends with the 
account. 

 
3.7.3 As agreed previously, the use of the earmarked HRA reserve manages budget 

volatility as and when required within the parameter of the overall agreed budget.   
£83,760 has been added for 2020/21 which relates to housing maintenance 
programming. 

 
3.7.4 The HRA fund balance will be assessed by the Director of Resources.  
 
3.8 Garage Rents   
 

3.8.1  It was agreed that the Council could adopt the approach to increase garage rents 
in line with dwelling rents from 2020/21 for the five-year period the new rent 
policy is in place.  

 

 52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks 

 
Average rent increase 
over 48 weeks 
= £1.19 per week 

2018/19 £74.41  £80.61 

2019/20  £73.67 £81.34 

2020/21 £75.76  £82.07 

2021/22 £76.86  £83.26 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.8.2  Garage rents will be increased by 1.5% (CPI 0.5% + 1%) in 2021/22. The 
proposed garage rents for 2021/22 are shown below: 

 

 

 

 

    
 
 
 
 
 
3.9  Additional considerations 
 
3.9.1 Service charges eg communal area cleaning 
 

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be adjusted 
as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of provision with no 
additional administrative costs. 

 
3.9.2 Service & Facility Charges for Dispersed & Furnished Properties 
 

The future funding of service charges has now been agreed and it will be exempt 
from Universal Credit and the charges can continue to be claimed by housing 
benefit. 

 
I would suggest the charges are increased as above 3.9.1 to reflect recovery of 
the cost of provision with no additional admin costs.  

 
3.9.3 Charges for enquiries in respect of re-sale of former Council property & 

charge for administration of leases     
 

Following agreement last year, some charges have been introduced for resale 
enquiries and leaseholder administration to ensure we are recovering the costs 
to administer such activities.  It is envisaged the remainder of the charges will be 
introduced for the start of the next financial year 2021/22.  This will be 
incorporated in the Council’s fees and charges for the financial year. 

 
3.9.4 Adelphi Court  
 

The block of 12 flats is currently leased to Richmond Fellowship as a supported 
housing scheme.  The current lease ended on 31st July, 2020 and it was agreed 
by Executive Committee on 30th September 2020 to renew the lease for a further 
four years.  Under the terms of the lease I would recommend the annual rent 
charged is increased by CPI plus 1% in accordance with the rental increase for 
residential dwellings.  
 
 

 No 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 
Increased 
Revenue 
2021/22 

Garage rate 1 27 £7.38 £7.58 £7.69 

£3,436 Garage rate 2 451 £10.19 £10.45 £10.61 

TOTAL 478 £230,157 £236,150 £239,586 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3.9.5 ASB Action Ltd - Service Level Agreement 2021/22 
 

Our aim is to provide homes in good repair and on estates where people would 
like to live. 

 
To enable the Housing Service to achieve this, effective management of anti-
social behaviour is imperative. 

 
ASB Action Ltd. provide a specialist service assisting social housing providers to 
effectively deal with such issues, including specialist legal advice at short notice 
for a fixed fee ensuring value for money. 
 
I would recommend Members agree to renew the annual Service Level 
Agreement with ASB Action Ltd. and suspend the requirement to obtain 
alternative quotes with regard to use of specialist services in accordance with 
Barrow Borough Council’s Purchasing Procedure (September 2017).  

 
The cost of a six-day Service Level Agreement, including training is £2,871 plus 
VAT.      
 

3.10 Priorities for the Year 2021/22   
 
During the financial year there are several factors which will have an impact on 
the service.  To summarise: 
 

3.10.1 Maintain a balanced Housing Revenue Account 
 

The Government has agreed to allow social landlords to increase their rents by 
CPI plus 1% in 2021/22 financial year. 
 
This is positive news; however, the number of properties continues to reduce 
requiring the need for continuous financial control and consideration of the future 
models of service delivery.  
 

3.10.2 Housing Management System - Cx 
 
2020 has seen significant progress made with Cx in a number of ways, most 
notably the development of the arrears policies within Cx to allow more effective 
management of rent accounts in arrears (both current and former arrears).  The 
system now has an inbuilt tool for Officers to identify rent accounts at various 
stages and a clear suggested escalation process with the ability to report and 
action letters along the way.  This has been a big step forward in how we 
manage current and former arrears. Officers can also now communicate with 
tenants via Cx by sending text messages and emails directly from the system. 
 
This year has also seen a great deal of time spent on improving the report 
functionality associated with Cx and a suite of reports are now available and 
have been integrity checked for use in financial reconciliation and performance 
reporting, as well as supporting the submission of the many annual returns 
required by the Government and other organisations. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Year-end and rent review 2019/20 was much more successful and Officers are 
confident in the use of the system for this purpose.  The support of Civica and 
our IT consultant is still required to support us through these processes; 
however, we hope upgrading to a newer release will improve this. 
 
The priority for 2021 is to upgrade the current version of the software we have 
installed.  Discussions are ongoing with Civica regarding this and we plan to 
have a test version installed on our servers in the new year to enable us to carry 
out some initial ‘smoke testing’ to identify any ‘showstoppers’ that would prevent 
us going live with the new version.  It is essential we upgrade the current version 
to ensure continued support is available from Civica with issues we log with 
them. 
 
The new version will offer a friendlier and more efficient user interface, new 
features and a far improved tenant portal, which is the self-serve facility offered 
by Civica for Tenants to access their rent account and other related information 
(formerly provided via See My Data). 
 
It was hoped that Tenant Hub (the name picked by tenants for the portal) would 
have been launched and rolled out in 2020, however due to priorities having to 
move to manage the effects of Covid-19, and also some technical issues which 
would prevent the user having a seamless experience when accessing the 
portal, the decision has been made to launch Tenant Hub in 2021 to coincide 
with the software upgrade, which will offer a much more user friendly Hub. 
 
Action:  

The development of the Cx system will continue as a key priority across the 
service during 2021/22. 

 
3.10.3 Welfare Changes & Income Collection 

 
The full service roll out of Universal Credit commenced on 5th December, 2018.  
Members will be aware of the change this has introduced and officers continue to 
work to mitigate the effect of the roll out. 
 
It is evident it continues to put a significant risk on the income we receive and 
puts continual increased pressure on the Operations Team to mitigate the effect 
to maximise our income; rent collection will be a key priority for staff.  
 
Action:   

Operations Team monitor impact of roll out and adopt best practice to minimise 
the risk to the income of the service. 
 

3.10.4 Covid Impact and Income Collection 
 

Despite our initial concerns when lockdown was introduced in March, 2020, there 
has been no negative impact on our rent income.  Staff have worked effectively 
to ensure Tenants’ benefit claims, including housing benefit, universal credit and 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



alternative pay arrangements have been in payment throughout the year 
2020/21. 
 
Action:  

Staff will continue to work with new universal credit claimants to provide support 
with the proposed extension to the furlough scheme.  

 
3.10.5 Water Rates Collection 
 

The current contract to collect water charges was extended by two years 
following agreement at HMF on 13th September, 2018 to assist with the 
maintenance of the HRA. 
 
It ends in March 2021 and it was agreed by Executive Committee on 9th 
September, 2020 to renew the contract with United Utilities for a further five 
years to maximize the commission the service will receive. 
 
The commission the service will receive in 2021/22 is estimated to be £162,480. 
 

3.11 Summary 
 

The proposed budget provides assurance the Council is controlling expenditure 
to meet the costs for service provision, taking into account the reducing number 
of housing stock and subsequent loss of rental income. 
 
The use of the earmarked reserve provides provision for flexibility in the service, 
together with ensuring a balanced budget over the next financial year 2021/22 
should additional reductions or efficiencies have not been identified.  
 

4.0 Consultation  
 
4.1 Not applicable.  
 
5.0  Alternative Options  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  
 
6.1 The proposed Housing Revenue Account budget contributes to the Council’s 

vision “For our Borough to be great place to live work and visit” and will assist the 
Council in meeting the Priority of Place to “Create a vibrant, safe and welcoming 
place where people want to live”. 
 

7.0 Implications  
 
7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  
 
7.1.1 The recommendation has financial implications as detailed in the report.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



7.2 Legal  
 
7.2.1 The recommendation has no legal implications. 
 
7.3  Equality and Diversity  

 
7.3.1  An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out for this report. The 

assessment indicated no adverse impact on any of the nine protected 
characteristics of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
Risk  
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

 
Funding from HRA 
may not be available.  

  
The Council could be open 
to challenge incurring costs 
outside existing budgets. 
 

. 
HRA budget availability 
periodically reviewed by 
Management Team. 
 

 

Contact Officers  

Report Author – Janice Sharp, Assistant Director - Housing Tel:  01229 876523 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  
 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Housing Revenue Account Budget 2021/2022 

 

Background Documents Available 
 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

Nil  

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Housing Revenue Account APPENDIX 1

Budget 2021-2022

Actual Base Budget Revised 

Budget 

Base Budget

2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021 2021-2022

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance 3,489,026 3,189,150 3,189,150 3,318,910

Supervision and management 3,560,998 3,493,880 3,511,670 3,501,010

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 15,505 12,500 12,500 16,010

Depreciation and impairment of dwellings 2,258,570 1,916,890 1,916,890 1,873,850

Depreciation and impairment of non-dwelling assets 175,571 175,620 175,620 139,110

Debt management costs 12,196 12,100 12,100 11,990

Movement in the allowance for bad debts 201,144 292,210 292,210 148,600

Total Expenditure 9,713,010 9,092,350 9,110,140 9,009,480

Income

Dwelling rents -9,857,628 -9,713,950 -9,713,780 -9,856,900

Non-dwelling rents -391,224 -416,790 -416,790 -419,960

Charges for services and facilities -1,420,516 -1,053,020 -1,126,650 -1,105,850

Total Income -11,669,369 -11,183,760 -11,257,220 -11,382,710

Net Total -1,956,358 -2,091,410 -2,147,080 -2,373,230

HRA services’ share of Corporate and Democratic Core 218,891 248,430 248,430 257,060

HRA share of other Non Distributed Costs -813 -60 -60 0

Net (Income)/Expenditure for HRA Services -1,738,281 -1,843,040 -1,898,710 -2,116,170

HRA share of operating income and expenditure:

Gain or (loss) on sale of HRA non-current assets -228,095

Interest payable and similar charges 909,872 901,780 901,780 886,330

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets 165,456 133,100 133,100 145,200

(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services -891,047 -808,160 -863,830 -1,084,640

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations

Reversal of depreciation and impairment of non-current assets

Reversal of revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment -1,253,155

Reversal of derecognition of non current assets 0

Add the voluntary provision for the financing of capital investment 816,520 816,520 816,520 816,520

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal 1,139,603

Debt rescheduling premium and discounts released 0

Reversal of technical items relating to retirement benefits -594,592 -133,100 -133,100 -145,200

Employer’s pension costs 271,505 19,020 19,020 19,590

Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 0 309,970

Contribution to Earmarked reserves 527,079 105,720 179,180 83,760

Contribution from Earmarked reserves 0 0 -17,790

Reversal of accumulated absences charges -15,912

Total Adjustments 891,048 808,160 863,830 1,084,640

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year 0 0 0 0

Page 19

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee  

10 February 2021 

Budget Proposals 2021-2022 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report sets out the budget proposals for 2021-2022 and the decisions 

associated with budget setting.  The report also sets out the Council Tax 

requirement for 2021-2022 and also includes the Pay Policy for 2020-2021. 

 

1.2 The 2021-2022 General Fund revenue budget is proposed as £7.238m which 

includes £142k for the parish precepts. 

 

1.3 The £7.238m budget includes one-off items that relate to COVID-19 and to the 

prior year results of the Collection Fund for Council Tax and Business Rates.  

For information, the core funding for the budget is £10.315m and the non-core 

funding that totals £3.077m, reduce that to £7.238m.  The non-core funding 

relates to grants awarded only for 2021-2022 and the prior year results of the 

Collection Fund. 

 

1.4 The Council Tax is proposed to increase by £5 per year at Band D (2.08%); 59% 

of properties are in Band A and the increase is £3.34 for the year, 6 pence per 

week. 

 

1.5 The budget is different to the Medium Term Financial Plan projection as the 

impacts of COVID-19 have prompted reconsideration of income streams in 

particular. 

 

1.6 The budget uses £3.8m of earmarked reserves with £3.7m specifically set aside 

from grant funding already received in relation to the COVID-19 extended retail 

relief awarded in 2020-2021. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 The Executive Committee recommend that Council:-  

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



1. Set the 2021-2022 General Fund revenue budget as £7,238,320 including 
£141,640 for parish precepts; 

2. Agree a Council Tax increase of £5 on Band D which is equivalent to 2.08% 
on all Council Tax bands (paragraph 3.4.8 refers); 

3. Agree the use of £3,792,850 of earmarked reserves (paragraph 3.3.2 refers); 
4. Note the budget pressures set out in paragraph 3.8 and: 

a. Agree to set aside £0.5m for the delivery of major projects within 
earmarked reserves 

b. Agree to transfer £624k between reserves to increase the 
Transformation Reserve; 

5. Agree the fees and charges set out in paragraph 3.6.2; 
6.  Approve the Pay Policy for 2021-2022; 
7.  Agree to release £0.4m of the General Fund balance to met COVID-19 

pressures on the Council budget beyond those already incorporated in the 
proposed 2021-2022 budget. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Financial Settlement 

 

3.1.1 The key provisions within the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

for the Council are: 

 

 Increasing the core settlement in line with inflation, which means: 

o holding Baseline Funding Levels flat, with grant compensating for the 

freezing of the business rates multiplier; and 

o uprating Revenue Support Grant by the consumer price index, so that 

all Councils are treated on an equal basis across the core settlement 

and under-indexation grant. 

 

 Council Tax referendum limit – up to 2% or £5, whichever is higher, for shire 

districts. 

 

 A new Lower Tier Services Grant for local authorities with responsibility for 

lower tier services.  The distribution is based on assessed relative needs plus 

the assurance that no authority sees an annual reduction in Core Spending 

Power for 2021-2022.  The Government is clear that this funding is in 

response to the current exceptional circumstances and is a one-off. 

 

 There is a new round of New Homes Bonus allocations but the Council does 

not reach the national baseline.  The net addition of 51 dwellings is an 

increase of 0.2% from the previous year and the national baseline is 0.4%; 

with New Homes Bonus awarded above 0.4%. 

 

 COVID-19 funding: 

o Expenditure Pressures Grant – unringfenced grant for additional 

expenditure and budget pressures; 

o Local Council Tax Support Grant – to recognise the increased costs of 

providing local council tax support. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



o Local tax income guarantee for 2020-2021 – 75% compensation for 

irrecoverable losses in council tax and business rate income in respect 

of 2020-2021; and 

o Sales, fees and charges compensation scheme extension – to cover 

losses in certain income streams for April to June 2021. 

 

3.1.2 The funding allocated to the Council is: 

 

 £1,279,303 Revenue Support Grant 

 £3,129,475 Baseline Funding (retained business rates) 

 £163,059 compensation for under-indexing the business rate multiplier 

 £133,275 Lower Tier Services Grant 

 £2,240 New Homes Bonus legacy payment 

 £486,003 COVID-19 Expenditure Pressures Grant 

 £119,450 COVID-19 Local Council Tax Support Grant 

 £4,383 New Burdens for ongoing Universal Credit work with Housing Benefits 

 

3.1.3 Apart from the Baseline Funding, the funding allocated in 3.1.2 is paid to the 

Council as grants except the compensation for under-indexing the business rate 

multiplier which is estimated for the settlement and actually calculated and 

reconciled through the NNDR claims to government. 

 

3.2 Core Spending Power 

 

3.2.1 Core Spending Power measures the core revenue funding available for local 

authority services, including Council Tax and locally retained business rates.  It is 

a measure of the resources available to local authorities to fund service delivery 

made available to local authorities through the Local Government Finance 

Settlement. 

 

3.2.2 In 2021-22, it is estimated that Local Government will see an increase of 4.5% in 

Core Spending Power – a real-terms or cash increase.  For this Council the 

increase is 3.7%, or £342,684, which comes from: 

 

 
 

Core Spending Power 2020-2021 9,281,728£ 

Revenue Support Grant 1,279,303£ 

Baseline Funding 3,129,475£ 

Compensation for under-indexing the business rates multiplier 163,059£     

Council Tax Requirement excluding parish precepts 4,917,060£ 

New Homes Bonus 2,240£         

Lower Tier Services Grant 133,275£     

Core Spending Power 2021-2022 9,624,412£ 

Monetary change in Core Spending Power from 2020-21 to 2021-22 342,684£     

Percentage change in Core Spending Power from 2020-21 to 2021-22 3.7%

Page 23

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



3.2.3 The Council Tax Requirement assumed in the Core Spending Power consists of 

the Council’s own demand and the COVID-19 Local Council Tax Support Grant; 

the grant replaces the reduction in Council Tax from the increase in Council Tax 

Support awarded. 
 

3.3 Budget 2021-2022 
 

3.3.1 The proposed General Fund budget for 2021-2022 attached at Appendix 1 is 

£7,238,320 which includes £141,640 for parish precepts.  At Appendix 2 the 

budget for 2021-2022 is shown by service, also referred to as cost centres. 
 

3.3.2 The budget is balanced with £3,792,850 drawn from earmarked reserves for: 
 

 
 

3.3.3 The recognition of Business Rates income is spread across financial years as 

determined by regulation.  The consequence of this is the recognition of the 

extended retail relief awarded in 2020-2021 occurs in 2021-2022.  The Business 

Rate income collectible has reduced and been replaced by grant from 

Government.  Government paid the grant in 2020-2021 and therefore the grant 

must be moved into 2021-2022.  This is an accounting requirement and not a 

cash transaction but causes a temporary increase in earmarked reserves. 
 

3.3.4 The addition to earmarked reserves for in-year Business Rate volatility is an 

estimate of the potential impact of reductions in rateable value.  Both office 

accommodation and the retail sector have indicated their intention to appeal their 

rateable values.  Should any reductions be successful they may be temporary, to 

reflect COVID-19 for example, but impact the Council’s income in any case.   

Budget Item Reserve

(£3,763,230) COVID-19 Business Rate reliefs awarded 2020-2021 Business Rate reliefs

(£32,470) Heritage Action Zone revenue support Transformation reserve

(£55,250) Public buildings planned/cyclical maintenance Renewals reserve

(£20,000) Insurance excesses Insurance reserve

(£200,000) Local Government Reorganisation Contingency reserve

(£56,580) Prior year Council Tax deficit Contingency reserve

(£30,000) Budget variations in-year Contingency reserve

(£10,000) Conducting local elections Contingency reserve

(£8,080) Cumbria Sexual Assault Referral Centre contribution Contingency reserve

(£7,500) Work in default Contingency reserve

(£5,000) People in the Lead contribution Contingency reserve

(£5,000) Poverty Truth Commission Contingency reserve

(£49,640) Barrow Citizen's Advice Bureau welfare support Welfare reserve

(£7,330) Barrow and District Disability Association Welfare reserve

(£4,250,080)

£457,230
Less the addition to earmarked reserves for in-year 

Business Rate income volatility
Contingency reserve

(£3,792,850)

Earmarked reserves used

Total earmarked reserves used

Page 24

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.3.5 The Medium Term Financial Plan was last presented to the Executive Committee 

on 11 November 2020.  The budget for 2021-2022 would usually be compared to 

the projection contained in the Plan but in order to identify the COVID-19 

impacts, particularly on income, the proposed budget has been compared to the 

original 2020-2021 pre-COVID budget. 

 

3.3.6 The main changes from the 2020-2021 budget to the 2021-2022 budget are set 

out in Appendix 3. 

3.4 Council Tax 

 

3.4.1 The Council Tax base for 2021-2022 has been set at 19,695.44 Band D 

equivalents for the whole area and is split as: 

 

 Barrow unparished 15,984.93 

 Dalton with Newton Town Council 2,355.65 

 Askam and Ireleth Town Council 1,097.84 

 Lindal and Marton Parish Council 257.02 

 

3.4.2 The Council Tax base has reduced by 35.4 Band D equivalents compared to last 

year.  There is an increase in the Band D equivalents for new properties and 

changes in the reductions and exemptions of 59.57; this is reduced due to the 

increase in Council Tax Support of 94.97 Band D equivalents. 

 

3.4.3 The basis for the calculation of dwellings for the Council Tax base is the 

Valuation Office list and the split between Bands is shown in the following table 

with the proportions above and below Band D: 

 

 
 

3.4.4 The ratio is the relationship to the Band D Council Tax to calculate the other 

Bands.  89% of properties are below Band D which means the borough has a 

low tax base. 

 

3.4.5 The proposed budget includes Council Tax increased to the maximum permitted 

by the Council Tax referendum principles; this is the Council Tax value assumed 

in the Core Spending Power calculation produced by government. 

 

3.4.6 For 2021-2022 the Council Tax increase is not excessive if it is under 2% or no 

greater than £5.  The Band D Council Tax for 2020-2021 is currently £240.41. 

 

3.4.7 The proposed increase in the Barrow Borough Council element of the Council 

Tax generates £98k. 

Band A B C D E F G H Total

Dwellings 19,864 5,513   4,744   2,403   1,044   238       69         9           33,884 

Proportion 59% 16% 14% 7% 3% 1% 0% 0% 100%

Grouped 7% 100%

Ratio 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

89% 4%

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.4.8 The increase on the individual bands is shown in the following table:   

 

 
 

3.5 Business Rates 

 

3.5.1 The Business Rate Retention Scheme figures included in the proposed budget 

are based on the NNDR1 form (a formal estimate of Business Rates for 

Government). 

 

3.5.2 The proposed budget relies upon £3.601m of business rate income which 

includes growth since the retention system began in April 2013.  This income is 

£472k above the current Baseline Funding determined by Government. 

 

3.5.3 The complete estimate of business rate income included in the budget for 2021-

2022 is £4.058m; £929k above the current Baseline Funding.  This level of 

business rate income is not guaranteed; some of the additional business rate 

income may be lost through rateable value appeals and collection difficulties, 

and in later years with the reform/reset of business rate retention – there may 

also be new build or rateable value increases, but these are not possible to firmly 

estimate now for the period ended March 2022. 

 

3.5.4  £457k of the Business Rate income above the Baseline Funding has been 

estimated for potential appeals and collection difficulties. 

 

3.5.5 The Council continues to be a member of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool.  The 

estimated Pool benefit is not yet known and it is proposed that this is added to 

reserves.  It is not expected that Business Rate pooling will feature in the new 

funding system for local government; this is not recurring funding. 

 

3.6 Fees and Charges 

 

3.6.1 The fees and charges are shown at Appendix 4. 

 

3.6.2 The proposed budget includes income from fees and charges as follows: 

 

Band 2020-2021
Annual 

increase
2021-2022

Increase 

per week

A 160.27£    3.34£         163.61£    0.06£         

B 186.99£    3.88£         190.87£    0.07£         

C 213.70£    4.44£         218.14£    0.09£         

D 240.41£    5.00£         245.41£    0.10£         

E 293.83£    6.12£         299.95£    0.12£         

F 347.26£    7.22£         354.48£    0.14£         

G 400.68£    8.34£         409.02£    0.16£         

H 480.82£    10.00£      490.82£    0.19£         

Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 
 

3.6.3 When price increases are proposed these are in accordance with the basis set 

out in the Discretionary Income Policy, such as full cost recovery and inflationary 

increases.  

 

3.6.4 The charge for the bulky household waste collection is not included in the fees 

and charges as there is a separate item on this Agenda which includes 

consideration of the pricing. 

 

3.6.6 No additional income has been included within the budget for bulky household 

waste collections.  This income is dependent upon the number of requests each 

year and changing the price may impact demand.  If new pricing is agreed, the 

activity and income will be covered by budget monitoring and it is proposed that 

any income above the baseline is used to further promote the Councils’ recycling 

and waste services. 

 

3.7 COVID-19 

 

3.7.1 As set out earlier in this report there are COVID-19 specific funds allocated to 

support 2021-2022. 

 

3.7.2 The Expenditure Pressures Grant of £486,003 has been included in the budget 

with matching additional expenditure.  The breakdown of the expenditure will 

depend on the restrictions and the pressure points within services.  The 

unringfenced funding received in 2020-2021 has also supported additional 

expenditure and income losses, it may be necessary to continue that approach. 

 

3.7.3 The local Council Tax support grant of £119,450 is included in the budget and 

recognises the increased costs of providing Council Tax Support.  This grant 

mitigates the reduction in the Council Tax base – without this grant the Core 

Spending Power would be lower in cash terms than anticipated. 

Budget Item Proposal

6,620£      Allotment rent 8% price increase

3,590£      Land charges 2.5% price increase

4,340£      Building control fees 2.5% price increase

5,380£      Planning fees 2.5% price increase

60£            Estates fees 3% price increase

60£            Barrow Park Various small price increases

-£           Cemetery and Crematorium No increase proposed

-£           Market rents No increase proposed

-£           Car parking No increase proposed

-£           Forum No increase proposed

-£           Public protection No increase proposed

-£           Kennel fees No increase proposed

20,050£    Income generated

Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.7.4 The local tax income guarantee for 2020-2021 is 75% compensation for 

irrecoverable losses in Council Tax and Business Rate income in respect of 

2020-2021.  The detail of this calculation and eligibility is not yet available.  It is 

anticipated that the methodology will be released prior to year-end and the 

funding will cushion the losses for 2020-2021, not for the proposed budget. 
 

3.7.5 The sales, fees and charges compensation scheme has been extended to cover 

losses in certain income streams for April to June 2021.  The scheme covers 

about 69% of income lost in services where there is an exchange for payment; a 

transaction that benefits the customer.  This scheme does not cover all income 

that is lost; some losses will need to be covered by Council funds once loss is 

experienced and can be calculated.  The budgeted income reflects the net 

position for service income; the income will come from customers and the 

compensation grant. 
 

3.7.6 It is not possible to know what restrictions will be in force from April 2021 to 

March 2022.  Where funding and compensation is made available, the Council 

will apply for all amounts available.  However, there may yet be further budget 

impacts as a result of COVID-19 and Members are asked to earmark £400k from 

the General Fund balance to cover additional costs and income losses that are 

not otherwise funded. 
 

3.7.7 There may be some element of savings in staff transport and subsistence 

headings depending on the restrictions in effect and this will be monitored.   
 

3.7.8 A further area of expenditure to highlight is the potential cost of running elections 

in a COVID environment, no unusual costs are factored into the core budget and 

this will have to be considered at the relevant time.  Government have recently 

asked for estimated additional costs to be submitted for information. 
 

3.7.9 The main income areas that have been adjusted within the proposed budget for 

the anticipated impacts of COVID-19 are car parking, the forum, planning 

applications and the interest earned on temporarily surplus funds.  In addition a 

contribution to the bad debt provision has been estimated.  The budget impact 

compared to the baseline in 2020-2021 is a loss of £449k and the Medium Term 

Financial Plan shall consider the longer term recovery of these income streams. 
 

3.7.10 The income that is within the scope of the compensation scheme is included in 

the service budgets rather than inflating the potential grant income; the net 

position is included and will transfer to grant once claimed in-year. 
 

3.7.11 Other income streams may also be impacted by COVID-19.  This will be 

identified through normal budget monitoring and will depend on the restrictions in 

place during 2021-2022. 
 

3.7.12 The COVID-19 grants received for business support that are not paid out at 31 

March 2021 will be carried forward in the Balance Sheet and are subject to 

various reconciliations and repayments to government.  Only those COVID-19 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



grants that directly fund additional costs or are supporting specified income 

losses are applied to the Council’s budget. 

 

3.8 Budget Pressures 

 

3.8.1 There are a number of potential budget pressures that are recognised as 

forthcoming or future costs.  Where possible these are included in the proposed 

budget but due to uncertainty of timing and unavailable details, only some are 

able to be identified at this time: 

 

 Delivery of major projects – Members are aware that the delivery funding is 

not included in the Town Deal.  The funding requested was to be 

amalgamated with the small amounts within other projects to meet the need 

for programme management and accountable body responsibilities.  To 

mitigate this pressure £0.5m is proposed to be set aside within the 

Transformation Reserve for major projects. 

 Local Government Reorganisation – the ongoing research, development and 

consultation/promotion is estimated to cost £200k during 2021-2022.  The 

cost makeup may be different depending upon the decisions taken by 

government and the estimated total may be different.  As shown in paragraph 

3.3.2 it is proposed that £200k is to be used from the Contingency Reserve to 

be used as needed to progress the project. 

 Leisure management fee – given the impacts of COVID-19 on leisure and 

leisure centres, the anticipated management payment from the leisure 

operating contract of £45k has been removed from the budget.  The ongoing 

arrangements for a leisure management fee are not included in the proposed 

budget as further work is required and this is very dependent upon the 

COVID restrictions for 2021-2022 and possibly longer in terms of full 

recovery. 

 The (Local Government) Pension Fund is subject to triennial valuations that 

set the contribution rates and deficit funding required from employers in the 

scheme.  The last valuation period covers 2020-2023 and the contribution 

rate for current employees significantly increased whilst the deficit funding 

has significantly decreased; this resulted in a new reduction in annual 

pension contributions.  The Pension Fund has a varied asset portfolio which, 

at the point of valuation, was performing better than anticipated and brought 

the Pension Fund closer into balance.  The resilience of these asset values 

beyond this valuation period is subject to judgement and the markets that the 

assets are held within.  It is prudent to set-aside or reserve the annual 

reduction in contributions as far as possible – if the pension contributions 

were to increase this would provide a cushion; if they decrease permanently 

or remain lower than previous valuations, then the annual review may re-

purpose the amounts reserved and/or savings released to revenue.  The 

asset values may now also be impacted by COVID-19.  The Medium Term 

Financial Plan anticipated a contribution to the pension fund volatility reserve 

of £586k; the proposed budget does not include any contribution for 2021-

2022. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.8.2 There are key aspects of the Council’s operations where significant reviews have 

commenced and where the financial impacts will be considered as the solutions 

are developed: 

 

  Establishment/staff: 

o Restructure – Management are concluding a review of the Council’s 

establishment in order to ensure that resources are appropriate to the 

service demands and that the resources are aligned to the Council’s 

priorities and the delivery of the Council Plan. 

o Grading – Management are working with the Local Government 

Association to review the current grading structure and produce a 

policy for Council to adopt that will provide a scheme to measure all 

job roles.  

o Neither of these establishment matters are cost saving exercises, 

there will be one-off costs to support the development and 

implementation of these projects, there may be transition costs and the 

current staff pay budget may need to be considered. 

o Organisational Development – Management are working with the 

Local Government Association to introduce organisational 

development to the Council.  The Council has no existing 

organisational development strategy or resource.  Change has begun 

with the values and behaviours programme; to create the culture and 

environment internally that represents the Council externally.  

Organisational development will be incorporated in the existing HR 

Department and resources added to ensure that the appropriate focus 

is given to implement and maintain the desired commitment to 

organisational development. 

o Posts added 2020-2021 – in order to create the resources needed to 

enable, implement and ensure delivery of projects including 

accountable body and organisational development Management are 

determining the resources required with immediate effect.  Ultimately 

there will be changes from the restructure that will align resources with 

priorities.  The budget for additional posts is limited and will not 

increase the proposed budget for 2021-2022; reserves will be used to 

fund any temporary increase in the staff pay budget during the 

establishment transition period. 

 Service specific software updates – these are required to modernise 

processes, remove paper, and enhance systems to provide user-friendly 

access for customers as well as enhanced solutions for staff and managers.  

The update programme has not yet been scoped as the corporate IT Agile 

Working project requires completion first to provide the basis for further 

developments within specific service needs. 

 

  

Page 30

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.9 Items to Note 

 

3.9.1 The budget assumptions reported to the Executive Committee in November 

2020 that have been revised in the proposed budget are: 

 

 Services – no services have been reduced but the demand for certain 

services has been reduced within income budgets to reflect COVID-19. 

 Staff pay award – the public sector pay award is “paused” with staff earning 

below £24,000 receiving a pay rise of £250 (confirmation pending); 35% of 

the Council’s staff. 

 Income reductions have been estimated due to COVID-19.  Recycling income 

has been reduced by £76k to reflect current performance but this is not due 

to COVID-19 and a communications plan is in place to promote the benefits 

of recycling and the recycling service. 

 

3.9.2 The inflationary pressures estimated within the proposed budget are: 

 

 £24,640 for staff pay awards including national insurance and superannuation 

 £22,950 for property costs 

 £65,220 for contracted services 

 £11,870 for supplies and services 

 

3.9.3 The full establishment has been budgeted for as: 

 

 General Fund 

o 226 posts 

o 196 expressed as full time equivalents 

 Housing Revenue Account 

o 49 posts 

o 44 expressed as full time equivalents 

 Total establishment 

o 275 posts 

o 240 expressed as full time equivalents 

 

3.9.4 The Council has been allocated £200,947 of Homeless Prevention Grant which 

has been included in the proposed budget; this primarily provides staff resources 

and funds work with partner organisations. 

 

3.10 Pay Policy 

 

3.10.1 The Council is required to publish the Pay Policy each year to provide 

transparency of the Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees. 

 

3.10.2 The Pay Policy for 2021-2022 is attached as Appendix 5 and has been updated 

to include the salaries required to comply with the regulations; these are 2020-

2021 salaries as at the date of publishing. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.10.3 The appendices referred to within the Pay Policy are not included as they have 

not changed; they are available on the Council website. 

 

3.11 Earmarked Reserves 

 

3.11.1 At 31 March 2020 the General Fund had £7.345m in earmarked reserves. 

 

3.11.2 During 2020-2021 it is currently estimated that £548k will be used to fund one-off 

items, plus the £3.7m set aside specifically for the Business Rate reliefs.  These 

items are not impacts of COVID-19; the various grants that have been received 

from government have covered the additional costs and income losses for 2020-

2021 to date. 

 

3.11.3 For 2021-2022 the one-off items included in the proposed budget and funded 

from reserves are identified in paragraph 3.3.2. 

 

3.11.4 It is not possible to accurately estimate the leisure management fee for 2021-

2022 and that may be partly covered by COVID-19 grant.  The Council will need 

to consider the impacts on any financial package when it is possible to do so.  If 

the recovery runs beyond the 2021-2022 budget, the leisure management fee 

would become an increase in the core budget and compensating savings and 

reductions would need to be identified. 

 

3.11.5 The contingency reserve is largely held for volatility with a smaller element held 

for one-off expenditure outside the core budget, such as the cyclical local 

elections. 

 

3.11.6 At 31 March 2021 earmarked reserves will be reviewed in detail against the 

outturn with any additional income reserved and any transfers between reserves 

as required.  Any deficit or surplus balances are dealt with through reserves.  All 

final movements in reserves are reported to the Executive Committee with the 

year-end report. 

 

3.11.7 During 2021-2022 there will be some use of the major projects reserve.  This will 

be estimated with the revision of the capital programme which will be presented 

at the next Executive Committee. 

 

3.11.8 The major projects reserve requires additional funding to meet the costs of 

programme delivery primarily and the transfers between reserves will be made 

as part of the 2020-2021 year-end.  The transfer is proposed as £624k, with 

£500k for programme delivery and the remainder added to meet the 

irrecoverable costs of feasibility work and temporary revenue costs of 

acquisitions (properties), the service specific IT refresh programme and the 

establishment projects set out in paragraph 3.8.2. 

 

3.11.9 At 31 March 2022 the General Fund earmarked reserves are estimated to be 

£6.767m.  These are shown in Appendix 6. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

3.12 Fund Balances 

 

3.12.1 The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in statute.  The Local 

Government Finance Act 1992 requires billing and precepting authorities in 

England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting 

estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget requirement.  Local 

authorities may also ‘earmark’ specific parts of the General Fund reserve; these 

are referred to as Earmarked Reserves. 

 

3.12.2 The Fund balances for General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account are 

calculated based on a risk-assessment basis.  Fund balances are not usually 

released unless all other usable reserves are depleted.  Balances and reserves 

are created and maintained from revenue resources. 

 

3.12.3 It is proposed that £400k of the General Fund balance is earmarked for potential 

budget support for 2021-2022 for COVID-19 impacts not covered by other 

funding.  The General Fund balance is currently £2.3m and the risk-assessed 

minimum is £1.9m.  It is preferable to maintain a balance above the minimum 

and earmarked reserves will be reviewed and released before the balance is 

used. 

 

3.12.4 In accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 I confirm that I, 

as the Chief Finance Officer of the Council, am satisfied that the budget 

assumptions and estimates are robust and that I consider the proposed level of 

financial reserves held by the Council to be adequate. 

 

3.13 Associated Documents 

 

3.13.1 It is the Council’s practice to consider the revenue budget proposals 

accompanied by various associated documents as a budget pack.  It has not 

been possible to complete those documents for this meeting.  The revenue 

impacts of capital and treasury are all included in the proposed budget; there are 

no financial impacts missing from the proposed revenue budget. 

 

3.13.2 The updates that will follow on from these budget proposals are: 

 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Reserves and Balances Policy 

 Capital Strategy (Capital Programme) 

 Treasury Management Strategy 

 

3.13.3 These documents will be presented to the next Executive Committee along with 

a revised budget position for 2020-2021. 

 

 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The public consultation ran from the 16 November 2020 to the 28 December 

2020.  The budget assumptions were presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on 20 January 2021. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Council must set a balanced budget and set the Council Tax in compliance 

with the Referendum Principles.  Whilst a balanced budget is required, the 

recommendations within the proposed budget are set out for consideration. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations primarily concern the Council’s financial resilience which 

underpins the Council’s operations, strategies and Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The body of the report contains the implications relating to the 2021-2022 budget 

proposals. 

 

Legal  

7.2 It is a statutory requirement to set the Council’s budgets, a balanced budget, and 

the Council Tax for the following financial year. 

 

7.2.1 Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 

present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the time 

of the meeting an amount of Council Tax is payable by them and has remained 

unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or Council Tax calculation, or 

recommendation or decision which might affect the making of any such 

calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting. 

 

7.2.2 In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 

practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies to 

them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It should be 

noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these matters. 

 

7.2.3 Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, unless 

any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 applied to them 

at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was the subject of 

consideration at the meeting.   

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the recommendations 
have no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Budget assumptions are 

insufficient. 

Budget shortfall. Best estimates are used 

and are supported by 

financial reserves. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Core expenditure is beyond 

the budget proposed or 

income is lower than 

expected. 

Budget shortfall. Financial monitoring and 

budgetary control. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Additional expenditure or 

income losses due to COVID-

19. 

Budget shortfall. As far as possible 

COVID-19 has been 

identified within the 

proposed budget, 

including the funding 

already allocated by 

government.  Financial 

monitoring and the 

identification of impacts 

from services. 

 
Contact Officers  

S M Roberts, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  General Fund Budget 2021-2022; Subjective 

2 General Fund Budget 2021-2022; Objective 

3 Year on Year Comparison 

4 Fees and Charges 2021-2022 

5 Pay Policy 2021-2022 

6 General Fund Earmarked Reserves 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



General Fund Budget 2021-2022 Appendix 1

Actual
Outturn

2019-2020
£

Original
Budget

2020-2021
£

Proposed
Budget

2021-2022
£

Subjective headings:
Staff pay 6,205,614 7,358,350 7,519,280

Pension accounting 1,842,561 0 903,000

Staff other costs 63,458 81,020 73,760

Transport 91,585 113,450 107,530

Property costs 2,669,749 1,999,060 2,135,430

Supplies and services 4,196,868 2,360,800 3,231,170

Contracts 3,721,469 3,862,780 3,531,870

Housing benefits 15,635,055 15,759,080 15,546,510

Housing benefit grants (15,484,358) (15,635,860) (15,397,240)

External income (8,360,244) (6,705,660) (6,337,090)

Direct costs 10,581,757 9,193,020 11,314,220

Internal income; HRA & capital (832,427) (920,370) (942,670)

Capital charges 1,963,689 1,716,660 2,032,390

Indirect costs 1,131,262 796,290 1,089,720

Net Expenditure 11,713,019 9,989,310 12,403,940

External interest earned (253,852) (171,000) (74,000)

External interest paid 584,643 584,650 584,650

Minimum revenue provision 731,336 505,920 741,320

Items excluded from Council Tax (1,479,196) (1,716,660) (2,935,390)

Items included in Council Tax (683,076) 283,060 280,650

Movement in reserves (720,276) 583,440 (3,792,850)

Budget variations 0 30,000 30,000

Net Revenue Budget 9,892,598 10,088,720 7,238,320

Budget financed by:
Revenue Support Grant (1,251,871) (1,272,270) (1,279,310)

Retained Business Rates (8,473,548) (8,833,210) (8,881,250)

Business Rates tariff 5,141,960 5,170,930 5,170,930

Business Rates levy 489,344 576,320 538,620

Business Rates pool (301,227) 0 0

Business Rates prior year (surplus)/deficit 0 188,480 3,763,230

New Homes Bonus (2,800) (11,080) (2,240)

New burdens (67,955) 0 (4,390)

Other Government grants (744,501) (977,260) (1,625,390)

Council Tax precept (4,718,930) (4,891,580) (4,975,100)

Council Tax prior year (surplus)/deficit 36,930 (39,050) 56,580

Total Revenue Financing (9,892,598) (10,088,720) (7,238,320)

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



General Fund Budget 2021-2022 Appendix 2

Service (cost centre)

Proposed
Budget

2021-2022
£

Corporate management 1,183,040

Democratic representation and management 531,820

Corporate support 237,200

Non distributed costs 201,250

Cost of collection 552,000

Local council tax reduction scheme administration 475,540

Conducting elections 10,000

Registration of electors 310,870

Emergency planning 533,470

Local land charges (35,250)

General grants 134,930

Dock museum 565,640

Forum 851,380

Sports development and community recreation 103,550

Leisure contracts 458,740

Barrow park 412,000

Parks and open spaces 522,590

Playground 326,220

Allotments 0

Cemeteries 128,830

Crematorium (463,910)

Coast protection 96,720

Food safety 218,700

Pollution 177,240

Occupational health 85,220

Port health 10,240

Public health inspection 126,400

Kennels 89,240

Page 39

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 5



Licensing 39,370

Public conveniences 101,320

Community Safety 31,010

Street cleansing 683,070

Streetcare team 97,450

Waste collection 908,060

Recycling 325,370

Building control 125,540

Work in default 7,500

Development control 363,980

Heritage Action Zone 32,470

Planning policy 212,270

Regeneration 102,650

Community development 930

The markets 142,550

The commercial estate (417,740)

Street fittings 34,580

Footpath lighting 55,040

Off street car parking (186,070)

Private sector housing 137,670

Housing benefits administration 551,820

Housing benefits paid (net of DWP subsidy) 149,270

Homelessness 26,620

Technical and other items:

Parish precepts 141,640

Reversal of depreciation (2,032,390)

Pension contributions 280,650

Treasury management 1,172,350

Central budgets to be allocated (bids required) 70,520

Movement in earmarked reserves (3,792,850)

Budget variations 30,000 (4,130,080)

Net Revenue Budget 7,238,320

Page 40

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 5



Appendix 3

Revenue Budget 2020-2021 to 2021-2022

£
Net revenue budget for 2020-2021 10,088,720

Exclude one-off reserves for 2020-2021 (835,150)

Core revenue budget for 2020-2021 9,253,570

Cost of pay award above budget 2020-2021 53,590

Contract and utility inflation below budget 2020-2021 (129,020)

Recurring budget impacts from 2020-2021 (75,430)

COVID-19 expenditure pressures* 486,010

COVID-19 lost income 295,780

COVID-19 bad debt provision 153,490

COVID-19 budget impact (* met by grant) 935,280

Estimated inflation on expenditure 2021-2022 124,680

Incremental advances in staff pay 60,390

NNDR cost for Council owned empty properties 67,670

External fees; valuation, legal, professional etc. 79,350

Increased IT costs from agile working and other improvements 46,090

Leisure management income removed from the budget 29,940

Other budget increases net of income changes 79,360

Budget changes for 2021-2022 487,480
One-off reserves for items within the net revenue budget (3,362,580)

Net revenue budget for 2021-2022 7,238,320

£
Total revenue financing 2020-2021 (10,088,720)

Exclude one-off reserves for 2020-2021 248,870

Core revenue financing for 2020-2021 (9,839,850)

COVID-19 emergency pressure grant (486,010)

COVID-19 local Council Tax support (119,450)

Lower Tier Services Grant (133,280)

New burdens (4,390)

Total one-off grants (743,130)

Council Tax £5 increase on Band D; pro-rata on other Bands (98,480)

Business Rate Retention Scheme 63,800

Other changes in grants and allocations 16,760

Changes in local taxes and recurring grants (17,920)
One-off reserves for items within the total revenue financing 3,362,580

Total revenue financing for 2021-2022 (7,238,320)

Page 41

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 6



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4

INDEX

SCHEDULE ONE

Allotments

Barrow Park

Estates

Kennels

Market rents

Cemeteries and Crematorium

Land Charges

SCHEDULE TWO

Car Parks

SCHEDULE THREE

The Forum

SCHEDULE FOUR

Public Protection

SCHEDULE FIVE

Building Control

SCHEDULE SIX

Planning applications

FEES AND CHARGES 2021-2022

Page 43

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE ONE

Allotments
Charges 
2020-2021

Charges 
2021-2022

Subject 
to VAT  

Y/N
Allotment Small Plot 40-200 sq yards £51.75 £55.89 N
Allotment Standard Plot 201-400 sq yards £103.51 £111.79 N
Allotment Large Plot 401-600 sq yards £155.26 £167.68 N
Allotments Very Large Plot 601-800 sq yards £207.01 £223.57 N

Garage Plots £103.51 £111.79 N

Outsized Plot £258.77 £279.47 N

Barrow Park

Bowling OAP Green Hire £10.75 £12.00 Y included

Evening Green Hire £18.50 £20.00 Y included

1 hour casual user £1.40 £1.40 Y included

Child £0.50 £0.50 Y included
Putting Adult £1.65 £1.65 Y included

Child £1.00 £1.00 Y included

Estates

Various Grazing fees 237.90 245.00 N
Legal fees 90.00 93.00 N
Stable Licence fee 115.80 119.00 N

Kennels 2020-2021 and 2021-2022

Unit of Charge
Standard 

Rate
Reduced 

Rate* 
Kennelling Fee Day 1 £41.80 £8.40 Y included
Kennelling Fee Day 2 £58.60 £16.80 Y included
Kennelling Fee Day 3 £75.40 £25.20 Y included
Kennelling Fee Day 4 £92.20 £33.60 Y included
Kennelling Fee Day 5 £109.00 £42.00 Y included
Kennelling Fee Day 6 £125.80 £50.50 Y included
Kennelling Fee Day 7 £142.60 £58.80 Y included
Pet Cremation Fees Communal £16.20 £16.20 Y included

* Reduced rate applies if owner can prove that they are in receipt of benefits

Market
Charges 
2020-2021

Charges 
2021-2022

Indoor Market Single stall per week 42.77 42.77 Y

Outdoor Market Standard stall per day 11.00 11.00 Y

Non market day per day 5.50 5.50 Y

Page 44

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE ONE

Cemetery & Crematorium
Charges 
2020-2021

Charges 
2021-2022

Subject 
to VAT  

Y/N

Sale of Grave £750.00 £750.00 N
Interment for 1 £850.00 £850.00 N
Interment for 2 £850.00 £850.00 N
Interment for 3 £850.00 £850.00 N

Headstone £120.00 £120.00 N
Full Kerb £120.00 £120.00 N
Headstone & Kerb £140.00 £140.00 N
Small Headstone £60.00 £60.00 N
Vase £60.00 £60.00 N
Crem kerbs £60.00 £60.00 N
Small Headstone & Crem Kerbs £70.00 £70.00 N
Standard Tablet £60.00 £60.00 N
Small Tablet 6" x 10" by tree £25.00 £25.00 N
Additional Inscription £60.00 £60.00 N

Grave Maintenance Planting twice yearly £320.00 £320.00 N
2nd year heather £220.00 £220.00 N
Rate 1 £320.00 £320.00 N
Rate 2 £220.00 £220.00 N

Book of Remembrance 2 lines £60.00 £60.00 Y included
5 lines £84.00 £84.00 Y included
5 lines & emblem £132.00 £132.00 Y included
8 lines £120.00 £120.00 Y included
8 lines & emblem £156.00 £156.00 Y included

White Memorial Card £42.00 £42.00 Y included
Coloured Memorial Card £66.00 £66.00 Y included
Leather Bound Booklet £90.00 £90.00 Y included
Additional Fee for Emblem 
(cards/books)

£72.00 £72.00 Y included

Cremation Resident £906.00 £906.00 N
Non Resident £906.00 £906.00 N
Direct Cremation £547.00 £547.00 N
Memorial service £140.00 £140.00 N
Body parts £22.00 £22.00 N
Cremation Grave £250.00 £250.00 N

Interment of Ashes Resident £240.00 £240.00 N
Non-resident £270.00 £270.00 N
Plastic urn £26.00 £26.00 N
Wooden casket £45.00 £45.00 N
Scattering of ashes £35.00 £35.00 N
Loose pour of ashes £50.00 £50.00 N

Page 45

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE ONE

Cemetery and Crematorium - continued
Subject 
to VAT  

Y/N

Memorial Plaques Green slate tablet & plaque £220.00 £220.00 N
Bronze plaque £130.00 £130.00 N
Renewal fee - 10 years £45.00 £45.00 N
Rose & plaque £180.00 £180.00 Y included
Memorial tree N/A N/A
Perspex plaque £60.00 £60.00 Y included
Memorial seat £680.00 £680.00 N
Seat plaque £110.00 £110.00 N

Miscellaneous Records search fee £22.00 £22.00 N
Plastic urn £26.00 £26.00 N
Wooden casket £45.00 £45.00 N

Land Charges

Charges 
2020-2021

Charges 
2021-2022

Subject 
to VAT  

Y/N
Domestic LLC1 21.00 N 

CON29R 82.73 Y included
Decision Notices 8.00 N 
Full Search 111.73

Commercial LLC1 32.00 N 
CON29R 110.21 Y included
Decision Notices 12.50 N 
Full Search 154.71

Other Fees Parcel of Land LLC1 2.00 N 
Parcel of Land CON29 24.00 Y included

Parcel of Land Full Search 26.00

Charges 
2020-2021

Charges 
2021-2022

Subject 
to VAT  

Y/N

Con29 Part II
Question  22 when 
submitted with Part 1

30.00 Y included

All other questions 15.60 Y included
Admin fee when questions 
asked without Part 1

14.40 Y included

Verification of information 
not supplied by Barrow 
Borough Council

22.00 N 

The budget for 2021-2022 has been increased by 2.5%.

However the impact on individual charges has not been identified by the service.

Page 46

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE TWO

Car Park
up to

20 minutes
up to 1 hour

up to 2 
hours

up to 3 
hours

up to 4 
hours

up to 10 
hours

Emlyn Street         --- £1.30 £2.30 --- £3.00 £6.00

Fell Street                   40p £1.30 £2.30 £3.00
---

---

Hall Street                   40p £1.30 £2.30 £3.00 --- ---

Market Street --- £1.30 £2.30 --- £3.00 £6.00

Oldham Street             40p £1.30 £2.30 £3.00 --- ---

Whittaker Street          40p £1.30 £2.30 £3.00 --- ---

Portland Walk Levels A&B --- 0 £2.30 £3.00 £4.00 ---

Portland Walk Level C --- --- £2.30 £3.00 £4.00 £6.00

ALL CHARGES ARE INCLUSIVE OF VAT

CAR PARK CHARGES 2020-2021 AND 2021-2022

Page 47

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE THREE

FORUM 28 - ROOM HIRE

Rate 
2020/2021

Proposed 
Rate 

2021/2022

Rate 
2020/2021

Proposed 
Rate 

2021/2022
£ £ £ £

Main Hall Sunday / get in Hourly rate 48.00 48.00 145.00 145.00
Sunday to Saturday Hourly rate 70.00 70.00 145.00 145.00
Half day rate 160.00 160.00 220.00 220.00
Full day rate 270.00 270.00 335.00 335.00

Ante Room Evening Hourly rate 27.00 27.00
Half day rate 100.00 100.00 120.00 120.00
Full day rate 145.00 145.00 175.00 175.00

Rydal Suite Evening Hourly rate 33.00 33.00
Half day rate 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00
Full day rate 165.00 165.00 195.00 195.00

Grasmere Suite Evening Hourly rate 27.00 27.00
Half day rate 100.00 100.00 120.00 120.00
Full day rate 145.00 145.00 175.00 175.00

Studio Evening Hourly rate 27.00 27.00
Half day rate 100.00 100.00 120.00 120.00
Full day rate 145.00 145.00 175.00 175.00

Evening Hourly rate 22.00 22.00
New Gateway Half day rate 75.00 75.00 85.00 85.00

Full day rate 100.00 100.00 120.00 120.00

Gateway as Grasmere Evening Hourly rate 25.00 25.00 170.00 170.00

Additional Services

Box Office rate 27.00 27.00 92.50 92.50

ALL PRICES ARE SUBJECT TO VAT

Subsidised rate Commercial Rates

Page 48

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FOUR

Public Protection Services
Charge 2021/22 
Application Fee

Charge 
2021/22 

Grant Fee

Subject to 
VAT  Y/N

Food Premises Registration
Registration No charge
Inspection of Register No charge
Copy of single entry to owners or business No charge

Food Safety Business Advice
Safer Food Direct £180 - Y
Food Safety Gain or Retain £180 - Y
Food Safety - Bespoke Advice £50 - Y
Food Diary Refills (12 month supply) £10 - N
Food Safety Pack and Diary £15 - N
Food Hygiene Rating Rescore (per visit) £145 - N
Food Export Certificates £73 - N

Licensing Advice

Licensing Application Advice (up to 1 hour) £36 - Y

Licensing Application Advice (up to 3 hours) £105 - Y

Licensing Application Check & Send (Full 
Service)

£72 - Y

Licensing Application Check & Send (Minor 
Vars)

£72 - Y

Licensing Application Check & Send 
(Personal etc)

£36 - Y

Licence and Registration Fees:
Street Trading
Annual Trading Consent (Non Food) £123 £80 N 

Annual Consent (Food - registered with BBC) £141 £80 N 

Annual Consent (Food - registered outside 
BBC)

£142 £134 N 

Mobile (Non-Food) £138 £78 N 
Mobile (Food - registered with BBC) £157 £78 N 
Mobile (Food registered outside BBC) £157 £134 N 

Barrow Borough Council Fees & Charges 2020/2021 and 2021/2022

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FOUR

Barrow Borough Council Fees & Charges 2020/2021 and 2021/2022

Charge 2021/22 
Application Fee

Charge 
2021/22 

Grant Fee

Subject to 
VAT  Y/N

Town Centre Street Trading
Annual (Non Food) £120 £578 N 
Annual (Food - registerd with BBC) £140 £577 N 
Annual (Food - registered outside BBC) £142 £134 N 
Mobile (Non-Food) £140 £632 N 

Street Trading Events
Events(Non Food) £116 £68 N 
Events(Food - registered with BBC) £136 £85 N 
Events (Food - registered outside BBC) £136 £140 N 
Events (Existing BBC Consent 
Holders/Retailers)

£53 £64 N 

Street Trading (Continental/Travelling 
Market)
Continental/Travelling Markets (up to 10 
stalls)

£166 £999 N 

Continental/Travelling Markets (up to 15 
stalls)

£166 £1,447 N 

Continental/Travelling Markets (up to 20 
stalls)

£166 £1,896 N 

Boat and Boatmen's Licences
Boatmen's Licence - Application Fee £130 £50 N 
Boat Licence - Application Fee £160 £50 N 

Taxi Licences
DBS Application (3 yearly) £40 - N 
Driver Licence Check £3.50 - N 

Dual Driver Licence (3 year licence) new £331 - N 

Dual Driver Licence (3 year licence) renewal £334 - N 

Hackney Carriage vehicle (new) £189 - N 
Hackney Carriage vehicle (renewal) £189 - N 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FOUR

Barrow Borough Council Fees & Charges 2020/2021 and 2021/2022

Charge 2021/22 
Application Fee

Charge 
2021/22 

Grant Fee

Subject to 
VAT  Y/N

Taxi Licences - continued

Hackney Carriage driver(3 year) £309 - N 
Hackney Carriage driver - renewal 3 year £289 - N 

Private Hire vehicle (new) £168 - N 
Private Hire vehicle (renewal) £168 - N 

Private Hire driver (3 year) £309 - N 
Private Hire driver - renewal 3 year £289 - N 

Private Hire operator new (5 year) £554 - N 
Private Hire operator renewal (5 year) £554 - N 

Miscellaneous Licence and Registration 
Fees
Pavement licence - expires 30 Sept 2021 £100 £100 N 
Pet Shops £156 £105 N 
Breeding of Dogs £156 £105 N 
Animal Boarding Establishments 
(Commercial) #

£156 £105 N 

Animal Boarding Establishments (Domestic  
) #

£156 £105 N 

Breeding of Dogs # £156 £105 N 
Riding Establishments # £156 £105 N 
Keeping /Training Animals for Exhibition # £156 £105 N 
Variation application for the above # £114 £93 N 
Dangerous Wild Animals # £161 £92 N 
# fee may include additional vet fees

Accupuncture, Tattooing, semi-permanent 
skin colouring, cosmetic piercing or 
electrolysis (PERSONAL) one-off payment

£156 £60 N 

Accupuncture, Tattooing, semi-permanent 
skin colouring, cosmetic piercing or 
electrolysis (PREMISES) one-off payment

£144 £60 N 

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FOUR

Barrow Borough Council Fees & Charges 2020/2021 and 2021/2022

Charge 2021/22 
Application Fee

Charge 
2021/22 

Grant Fee

Subject to 
VAT  Y/N

Miscellaneous Licence and Registration 
Fees - continued

Scrap Metal dealers(Premises) £328 - N 
Scrap Metal dealers(Collectors) £286 - N 
Scrap Metal dealer (variation) £96 - N 
Sex establishment - new £258 £71 N 
Sex establishment - renewal £240 £71 N 

Small Society Lotteries - initial registration £40 - N 
Small Society Lotteries - renewal £20 - N 

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (as amended) 
new/renewal *

£5,246 - N 

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (as amended) 
transfer *

£1,187 - N 

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (as amended) 
disapplication of the act *

£121 - N 

* vet fees and Secretary of State Officer fees 
may apply

All Charges including Statutory Fees can 
be found on the Barrow Borough Council 
Website

Page 52

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FIVE

BUILDING CONTROL

2021-2022 Fees and Charges Schedule 1
Charges for New Dwellings

Number of Dwellings Plan Charge
Inspection 

Charge
Building Notice 

Charge
Regularisation 

Charge
1 £221.25 £455.42 £710.50 £1,065.75
2 £292.92 £580.00 £916.67 £1,375.00
3 £385.83 £810.83 £1,256.67 £1,884.99
4 £478.33 £1,104.17 £1,661.63 £2,492.45
5 £578.33 £1,153.33 £1,818.25 £2,727.38

Schedule 2
Charges small buildings, extensions and alterations

Type of Work Plan Charge
Inspection 

Charge
Building Notice 

Charge
Regularisation 

Charge

1

Erection or extension of a 
detached or attached garage 
or carport or both, having a 

floor area up to 60m2 in total 
and intended to be used in 
common with an existing 
building, and which is not an 
exempt building.

£152.50 £159.17 £327.25 £490.88

2
Any extension of a dwelling 
the total floor area of which 

does not exceed 10m2.
£152.50 £159.17 £327.25 £490.88

3

Any extension of a dwelling 
the total floor area of which 

exceeds 10m2, but does not 

exceed 40m2.

£152.50 £300.83 £476.00 £714.00

4

Any extension of a dwelling 
the total floor area of which 

exceeds 40m2, but does not 

exceed 60m2.

£152.50 £441.67 £623.88 £935.82

5

A loft conversion – alteration 
of a dwelling to provide one 
or more rooms in a roof 
space.

£152.50 £292.50 £467.25 £700.88

6

A garage conversion – 
alteration of a dwelling to 
provide one or more room in 
an existing garage

£60.83 £181.67 £254.63 £381.95

Page 53

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FIVE

BUILDING CONTROL

Schedule 3
Charges for all other work

Fixed price based on 
estimated cost bands

Plan Charge
Inspection 

Charge
Building Notice 

Charge
Regularisation 

Charge
£0 – £1,000  £100.00 - £100.00 £137.49
£1,001 – £2,000 £150.00 - £150.00 £225.00
£2,001 - £5,000 £225.00 - £225.00 £337.50
£5,001 – £10,000 £69.58 £208.33 £291.82 £437.73
£10,001 – £20,000 £81.25 £242.08 £339.50 £509.25
£20,001 – £30,000  £108.75 £324.58 £455.00 £682.50
£30,001 – £40,000 £133.75 £400.42 £560.88 £841.32
£40,001 –  £50,000 £159.17 £477.08 £668.07 £1,002.11
£50,001 – £60,000 £184.58 £553.33 £774.82 £1,162.23
£60,001 – £70,000 £210.00 £629.58 £881.57 £1,322.36
£70,001 – £80,000 £235.00 £705.83 £987.88 £1,481.82
£80,001 – £90,000 £260.83 £781.67 £1,094.63 £1,641.95
£90,001 – £100,000 £286.25 £858.33 £1,201.82 £1,802.73

Minimum Charges

Type of Work
Standard 

Charge
Regularisation 

Charge

£91.67 £137.49

£52.50 £78.75

£91.67 £137.49

£140.00 £210.00

- -

£250.00 £375.00
£170.00 £255.00
£85.00 £127.50

£91.67 £137.49

Rewiring
Addition of new circuit(s)
Unvented hot water system

Replacement roof covering / renovation of a 
thermal element (domestic)

Replacement windows (Domestic):  The 
minimum charge for a scheme of window(s) 
and/or door replacements in dwellings.

Replacement of a single window or door 
(Domestic)

Chimney lining (Domestic)

Replacement Windows (Non-Domestic): The 
charge shall be 20% of the normal charge 
based on the estimated cost of the work (see 
schedule 3 ‘charges for all other work’ table 
above), subject to a minimum charge of:

Oil / Non-mains gas fuel storage systems

Electrical work:  Where electrical works are to 
be carried out to a dwelling and the work is 
under the control of the Council the following 
charges will apply:

Page 54

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE FIVE

BUILDING CONTROL

Minimum Charges - continued

Type of Work
Standard 

Charge
Regularisation 

Charge

£91.67 £137.49

£91.67 £137.49
£91.67 £137.49

£210.00 £315.00

£210.00 £315.00

£150.00 £225.00

VAT is payable on all charges except Regularisation charges

Replacement roof covering / renovation of a 
thermal element (Non-Domestic): The charge 
shall be 20% of the normal charge based on 
the estimated cost of the work (see schedule 3 
‘charges for all other work’ table above), 
subject to a minimum charge of:

Wind turbines
Solar panels (Domestic)

Boilers / heating installations: the charge for 
boilers / heating installations with on output 
over 50kW will be subject to a charge of:

Replacement waste treatment plant (e.g. 
septic tanks)

Installation of multi-fuel stove

Page 55

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE SIX

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Outline Applications
Site Area Upto 2.5 hectares £462 per 0.1 hectare

More than 2.5 hectares
£11432 Plus £138 per 0.1 hectare 

upto max £150,000

Householder Applications

Alterations/extensions to 
single dwelling house, 
including works within boundary

Single Dwelling House £206

Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters; or Technical Details Consent)
Alterations/extensions to  
dwelling houses, including 
works within boundaries

Single dwellinghouse (or single flat) £206

Two or more dwellinghouses (or two 
or more flats)

£407

New dwelling houses
Not more than 50 new 
dwellinghouses

£462 per dwelling house 

More than 50 new dwellinghouses
£22859 Plus £138 per additional 

dwelling household upto a max of 
£300,000

Erection of buildings (not dwelling houses, agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor machinery):
Gross floor space to be 
created by the development

No increase in gross floor space or 
no more than 40 sq m

£234

More than 40 sq m but no more 
than 75 sq m

£462

More than 75 sq m but no more 
than 3,750 sq m

£462 for each 75sq m or part thereof

More than 3,750 sq m
£22,859 + £138 for each additional 75 

sq m in excess of 3,750 sq m to a 
maximum of £300,000

The erection of buildings (on land used for agricultural purposes):
Gross floor space to be 
created by the development

Not more than 465 sq m £96

More than 465 sq m but not more 
than 540 sq m

£462

More than 540 sq m but not more 
than 4,215 sq m

£462 for first 540 sq m + £462 for 
each 75 sq m (or part thereof) in 

excess of 540 sq m

More than 4,215 sq m
£22,859 + £138 for each 75 sq m (or 
part thereof) in excess of 4,215 sq m 

up to a maximum of £300,000
Erection of glasshouses (on land used for the purposes of agriculture)
Gross floor space to be 
created by the Not more than 
465 development sq m

Not more than 465 sq £96.00

More than 465 sq £2,580.00
Erection/alterations/replacement of plant and machinery

Site area Not more than 5 hectares
£462 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof)

More than 5 hectares

£22,859 + additional £138 for each 
0.1 hectare (or part thereof) in excess 

of 5 hectares to a maximum of 
£300,000

Page 56

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE SIX

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Applications other than Building Works
Car parks, service roads or 
other 

For existing uses £234.00

Site area  Not more than 15 hectares
 £234 for each 0.1 hectares (or part 

thereof)

More than 15 hectares
£34,934  + £138 for each 0.1 hectare 

(or part thereof) in excess of 15 
hectares up to a maximum of £78,000

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas

Site area Not more than 7.5 hectares
 £508 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof)

More than 7.5 hectares

£38,070 + additional £151 for each 
0.1 hectare (or part thereof) in excess 

of 7.5 hectares up to a maximum of 
£300,000

Operations (other than exploratory drilling) for the winning and working of oil or natural gas

Site area  Not more than 15 hectares
 £257 for each 0.1 hectares (or part 

thereof)

More than 15 hectares
£38,520 + additional £151 for each 
0.1 in excess of 15 hectare up to a 

maximum of £78,000
Other operations (winning and working of minerals) excluding oil and natural gas

Site area  Not more than 15
 £234 for each 0.1 hectare hectares 

(or part thereof)

More than 15 hectares
£34,934 + additional £138 for each 
0.1 in excess of 15 hectare up to a 

maximum of £78,000
Other operations (not coming within any of the above categories)

Site area Any site area
£234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof) up to a maximum of £2,028
Lawful Development Certificate

Same as Full 
£234

Half the normal planning fee.

£96
£96
£96

£462
£96
£96
£96
£96
£96

£96 or £206 if it includes building 
operations in connection with the 

change of use
£96 or £206 if it includes building 
operations in connection with the 

change of use
£96

£96; or £206 if it includes building 
operations in connection with the 

change of use

Demolition of buildings

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of material remaining after extraction 

Existing use or operation
Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with any condition or 
Proposed use or operation

Larger Home Extensions (from 19 August 2019)
 Agricultural and Forestry buildings & operations 

Prior Approval

Communications (previously referred to as ‘Telecommunications 
Change of Use from Shops (Class A1), Professional and Financial 

Change of Use of a building and any land within its curtilage from 
Change of Use of a building and any land within its curtilage from an 
Change of Use of a building and any land within its curtilage from an 

Change of Use of a building and any land within its curtilage from 

Change of Use of a building and any land within its curtilage from an 
Agricultural Building to Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3)

Change of use of a building from Shops (Use Class A1), Financial 
and Professional Services (Use Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day 
Loan Shops, Launderette; or a mixed use combining one of these 
Change of use of a building and any land within its curtilage from 
Change of Use of a building and any land within its curtilage from 
Amusement Arcades/Centres and Casinos (Sui Generis Uses) to 
Dwellinghouses (Use Class C3)

Page 57

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



SCHEDULE SIX

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

£96; or £206 if it includes building 
operations in connection with the 

change of use
£96
£96
£96
£96
£96

Full fee due or if full fee already paid 
then £462 due

Approval/Variation/discharge of condition
£234.00

£34 per request for Householder 
otherwise £116 per request

Change of Use of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses, or other cases
Number of dwellinghouses  Not more than 50 dwelling houses £462 for each

More than 50 dwellinghouses
£22,859 + 138 for each in excess of 

50 upto a maximum of £300,000
£462

Relating to the business on the premises £132
£132
£462

Application for a Non-material Amendment Following a Grant of Planning Permission
£34

£234

Application for Permission in Principle

Site area
£402 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof)

Change of Use of a building from Shops (Use Class A1) and 

Change of Use of a building from Shops (Use Class A1), Financial 
and Professional Services (Use Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day 
Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui Generis Uses) to Restaurants and 

Prior Approval - continued

VAT is not payable on Planning Application fees

Applications in respect of other developments

Change of Use from Shops (Class A1), Professional and Financial 
Development Consisting of the Erection or Construction of a 
Temporary Use of Buildings or Land for the Purpose of Commercial 
Installation, Alteration or Replacement of other Solar Photovoltaics 

Application for approval of reserved matters following outline 
approval

Application for removal or variation of a condition following grant of 
Request for confirmation that one or more planning conditions have 
been complied with

Other Changes of Use of a building or land

Advance signs which are not situated on or visible from the site, 
Other advertisements

Applications in respect of householder developments 

Reserved Matters

Advertising

Page 58

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 

 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 

Version: February  2021 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Executive Committee/Council 

Date Approved: February 2021 

Review Date March 2022 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 8



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
 
Barrow Borough Council Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
 
Background 
 
Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the ‘power to 
appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit’.  
This Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s 
approach to setting the pay of its employees by identifying; 
 

□ The detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, 
as defined by the relevant legislation; 

□ Executive committee are responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this 
statement are applied consistently throughout the Council and recommending 
any amendments to full Council. 

 
The Pay Policy Statement was approved by full Council on 20th March 2012 coming 
into immediate effect and is subject to review on an annual basis being approved by 
31st March each year. 
 
Other legislation relevant to pay and remuneration 
 
In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its Chief Officers, the Council will 
comply with all relevant employment legislation.  This includes legislation such as the 
Equality Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) 
Regulations 2000 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Earnings) Regulations. 
 
Pay Structure for Chief Officers 
 
The Council uses locally determined rates with spot salaries, which are subject to pay 
increases negotiated with joint trade unions, via the national pay bargaining 
arrangements (the JNC for Chief Officers). 
 
All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally 
negotiated rates, having been determined from time to time in accordance with 
collective bargaining machinery. 
 
From time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay levels in the 
labour market in order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills 
and capacity.  Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is 
objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant market 
comparators, using data sources available from within the local government sector 
and outside, as appropriate. 
 
Any temporary supplement to the salary scale for the grade, for example ex-gratia 
payments and honoraria, is approved in accordance with the Council’s constitution, i.e. 
delegated to the Chief Executive and the Director of Resources who may seek 
Executive Committee approval if so determined.   
 
 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 8



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
 
Chief Officer Remuneration 
 
For the purposes of this statement, senior manager means ‘chief officers’ and are 
defined below.  The posts falling within the statutory definition are set out below, with 
details of their basic salary as at 1st April 2020.  In addition to the Chief Executive, 
there are five employees designated as Chief Officer and receiving remuneration over 
£50,000 per annum.  The Council’s Organisation Structure is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Salary currently set at £102,333 pa (spot salary) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Executives 
Will receive fees relating to the role of Returning Officer and similar positions as 
detailed below* 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
*The role of Returning Officer is designated to the Chief Executive In accordance with the 
national agreement the Returning Officer is entitled to receive and retain the personal fees 
arising from performing the duties of Returning Officer, Acting Returning Officer, Deputy 
Returning Officer, or Deputy Acting Returning Officer and similar positions which he or she 
performs subject to the payment of pension contributions thereon, where appropriate. 
 
 
Director of Resources & Director of People and Place 
 
Salary set at £81,866 pa (spot salary) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Officers 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
Head of Legal & Governance/Monitoring Officer 
 
Salary set at £53,430 pa (third point of 4 point scale ranging from £51,375 to 
54,458pa) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Officers 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
Assistant Director Housing & Assistant Director Community Services 
 
Salary set at £52,278 pa (spot salary) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Officers 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
 
 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 8



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
 
Recruitment of Chief Officers 
 
The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief Officers is set 
out within the Recruitment Policy (Appendix 2) and as set out in the Constitution.  
Executive Committee or a sub-committee will make all Chief Officer appointments. 
 
When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper account of all 
provisions of relevant employment law and its own policies (Recruitment Policy, 
Appendix 2, Organisational Change Policy, Appendix 5) as approved by Council. 
 
The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed chief 
officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the 
time of recruitment. 
 
Additions to Salary of Chief Officers 
 
The level of remuneration is not variable dependant upon the achievement of defined 
targets. 
 
To meet specific operational requirements, it may be necessary for an individual to 
temporarily take on additional duties to their identified role.  The Council’s 
arrangements for authorising any additional remuneration relating to temporary 
additional duties are set out in the NJC Terms and Conditions for Local Government 
Services for calculation of honoraria, and the Councils Ex-gratia Payments Policy 
(Appendix 3). 
 
In addition to basic salary, the following posts receive elements of ‘additional pay’ 
which are chargeable to UK Income Tax and do not solely constitute reimbursement of 
expenses occurred in the fulfilment of their duties; 
 
Post    Payment Details 
Chief Officers  Lump Sum Car Allowances currently  
 
Payments on Termination  
 
The Council’s approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of 
employment of chief officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age, is set out within 
the Early Retirement Policy (Appendix 4) and Organisational Change Policy (Appendix 
5) in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early Termination 
of Employment) Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006. 
 
The Council has a voluntary redundancy scheme in place aimed at encouraging 
volunteers and reducing the need for compulsory redundancies.  This scheme uses 
the statutory calculator (age/length of service) to determine the number of weeks pay 
volunteers will be entitled to, subject to a maximum of 30 weeks’ pay.  Actual pay is 
used in the calculation, NOT the statutory maximum. 
 
For volunteers aged over 55 and entitled to early access to pension, there will be no 
discretionary additions to payments.   
 
The severance terms apply to all employees of the Council. 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 8



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
 
Any payments falling outside the provisions of the above policies, (pay in lieu of notice, 
working notice, gardening leave etc) will be made on a case by case basis and shall 
be subject to a formal decision by Executive Committee and approved by Council. 
 
Settlement Agreements 
 
Under the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 the Council will use Settlement 
Agreements where there exists a clear and real risk of an Employment Tribunal case 
and where it is commercially expedient to do so. Settlement Agreements will not be 
considered as normal protocol when employment terminates.  
 
Settlement Agreements are not necessary in a voluntary or compulsory redundancy 
scenario. If the Council’s redundancy policy and procedure has been complied with 
and if a Senior Manager’s employment has been terminated with proper notice and 
where any dismissal is fair, a Settlement Agreement is unnecessary. In addition, the 
Council avoids having to pay the legal fees incurred by the employee for the review of 
the agreement. The Council will therefore only use Settlement Agreements where 
there exists a real risk of Employment Tribunal litigation. 
 
Publication 
 
Upon approval by full Council, this statement will be published on the Council’s 
website. 
 
Lowest Paid Employees 
 
The lowest paid persons employed under a contract of employment with the Council 
are employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in accordance with the 
minimum spinal point with the Council’s grading structure. 
 
As at 1st April 2020, this is £17,842 per annum (spinal column point 1).   
 
The current pay levels within the Council (at 1.12.20) give the multiple between the 
median full time equivalent earnings and the Chief Executive as 3.8:1. 
 
Accountability and Decision Making 
 
In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, Executive Committee is 
responsible for decision making in relation to the recruitment, pay, terms and 
conditions and severance arrangements in relation to employees of the Council. 
 
Re-employment / Re-engagement of former Chief Officers 
 
The Council will not normally re-employ/re-engage former Chief Officers. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1  Organisation Structure 
Appendix 2  Recruitment Policy 
Appendix 3  Ex-gratia Policy 
Appendix 4  Early Retirement Policy 
Appendix 5  Organisational Change Policy 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 8



This page is intentionally left blank



General Fund Earmarked Reserves Appendix 6

Earmarked Reserve 01/04/2020
£

Movements
£

Transfers
£

31/03/3021
£

Movements
£

31/03/2022
£

Business Rate reliefs - 3,763,230 - 3,763,230 (3,763,230) 0
Transformation 1,517,152 (296,210) 624,000 1,844,942 (32,470) 1,812,472
Renewals 725,889 (99,270) - 626,619 (55,250) 571,369
Insurance 100,000 (20,000) - 80,000 (20,000) 60,000
Losses 861,773 - - 861,773 - 861,773
Contingency 2,851,184 44,520 (624,000) 2,271,704 135,070 2,406,774
Other reserves 702,227 (56,970) - 645,257 (56,970) 588,287
Ring-fenced grants 586,754 (119,960) - 466,794 - 466,794
Total 7,344,979 3,215,340 0 10,560,319 (3,792,850) 6,767,469

These reserve projections are dependent upon the outturn of 2020-2021.
The projection of reserves will be updated with the Capital Strategy which uses the transformation reserve (for major projects).

Earmarked reserves estimated at 31 March 2022
£

Major Projects 1,432,523
Business Rates income volatility 1,381,514
Pension deficit funding 1,073,280
Ring-fenced grants - restricted to specific additional expenditure 466,794
Municipal Mutual Insurance - scheme of arrangement 440,723
DWP Housing Benefit subsidy - pending claims settlement 382,701
Service transformation 379,949
Public and commercial buildings planned maintenance 371,369
Other amounts set aside for specific items and contingencies 838,616

6,767,469

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Council  

25 February 2021 

Council Tax Setting 2021-2022 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The calculation and setting of the Council Tax for the Borough area is closely 

prescribed by legislation.  This report sets out the individual components of the 

calculation and concludes with the formal resolution in accordance with the 

statutory requirements. 

 

1.2 The individual components of the Council Tax are approved through the budget 

setting processes of each preceptor.  The preceptors are Barrow Borough 

Council, the Parishes, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 

Cumbria County Council. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 The Council is recommended to:-  

 
1. To note that Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Cumbria precepts are subject to their approval on the 18 
and 19 February 2021 respectively.  Should their precept or Council Tax 
Band figures be changed an update will be provided at the meeting; and 

 
2. To approve the formal Council Tax resolutions as detailed in Section 3.8 of 

the report. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  Budget  

 

3.1.1 At this meeting the Council is considering the approval of the 2021-2022 General 

Fund revenue budget of £7,238,320; this includes £141,634 of Parish precepts.  

The budget is the amount required to meet the years estimated expenditure net 

of any income raised in fees, charges or service specific grant funding.  The 

budget includes the following precepts issued by the Parishes for 2021-2022: 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

3.1.2 The Council Tax Requirement for the Borough is £4,975,092 and is made up as 

follows (note that together the Parish precepts and the General Fund revenue 

budget make up the Net Revenue Budget): 

 

 
 

3.1.3 The legislation requires the Council’s revenue budget to be grossed up to show 

the estimated total expenditure and income for 2021-2022: 

 

 
 

3.2  Council Tax Base 

 

3.2.1 The following Council Tax Bases for the Borough and the parished areas have 

been set for 2021-2022 as notified to the Executive Committee on the 10 

February 2021: 

 

 
 

3.3  Calculation of the Basic Council Tax for the Borough Council 

 

3.3.1 The Council’s Basic Amount of Council Tax for Band D dwellings is calculated as 

follows: 

 

Precept £

Dalton with Newton Town Council 120,279

Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 17,006

Lindal and Marton Parish Council 4,349

Total parish precepts 141,634

Item £

General Fund revenue budget 7,096,686

Less general grants and Business Rate Retention (6,083,035)

Plus the Collection Fund deficit 3,819,807

Council Tax Requirement excluding parish precepts 4,833,458

Plus the Parish precepts 141,634

The Council Tax Requirement 4,975,092

Item £

Total gross expenditure 64,242,357

Total gross income (59,267,265)

The Council Tax Requirement 4,975,092

Whole Area 19,695.44

Dalton with Newton 2,355.65

Askam and Ireleth 1,097.84

Lindal and Marton 257.02

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



 
 

3.3.2 This Band D rate of Council Tax is, in effect, an average across the Parished and 

Unparished areas of the Borough.  The statutory calculation then arrives at the 

Basic Amounts of Council Tax (for Band D dwellings) for the individual areas as 

follows: 

 

 
 

3.3.3 The table in Section 3.8.4 shows the tax amounts for each Band and Parish in 

the Council’s area. 

 

3.4 Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria 

precepts and amounts of Council Tax 

 

3.4.1 Cumbria County Council set its budget for 2021-2022 resulting in a precept of 

£29,504,557.  The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria set its budget 

with a precept of £5,360,311.  The table in Section 3.8.5 shows the banded 

amounts of Council Tax. 

 

3.5 Setting the Council Tax 

 

3.5.1 The calculated Borough, Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 

Cumbria County Council elements are added to calculate the composite Council 

Tax.  The Council Tax for each category of dwellings is shown in the table in 

Section 3.8.6.  After setting the Council Tax, the Council is required to advertise 

the amounts within 21 days in at least one local newspaper. 

 

3.6 Schedule of precept instalments 

 

3.6.1 The precepts issued by Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Cumbria are payable in equal monthly instalments on dates to 

be agreed with the two authorities.  The Borough Council’s demand will be paid 

to the General Fund by instalments on the same dates.  The three Parish 

precepts will be paid over in full on the April precept payment date. 

 

 

 

 

The Council Tax Requirement excluding Parishes £4,975,092

Divided by the Council Tax Base for the Whole Area 19,695.44

Gives the Basic Amount of Council Tax £252.60

Area Basic Amount

Barrow (unparished) £245.41

Dalton with Newton parish £296.47

Askam and Ireleth parish £260.90

Lindal and Marton parish £262.33

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



3.7 Instalment dates 

 

3.7.1 Council Tax and Business Rate bills are payable in ten instalments.  The 

payment dates, which will maximise cash flow, are as follows and these may 

have to be adjusted in the event of any delay in issuing bills: 

 

 
 

3.8 Resolutions 

 

Members are recommended to adopt the following resolutions: 

 

3.8.1 It be noted that on the 10 February 2021, the Council calculated the Council Tax 
Base for the year 2021-2022 in accordance with Regulations made under 
Section 33(5) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the Act): 

 
a. for the whole Borough area as 19,695.44 in accordance with Regulation 3 of 

the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulation 1992, as 
its Council Tax Base for the year; 

 
b. for dwellings in those parts of the Borough area to which a Parish Precept 

relates; being the amounts calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Regulation, as the amounts of its Council Tax Base for the year for dwellings 
in those parts of its area to which one or more special items relate: 

 

 
 

3.8.2 That the Council Tax Requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 2021-2022 

(excluding Parish Precepts) is £4,833,458. 

 

3.8.3 That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2021-2022 in accordance 
with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government and Finance Act 1992: 

 
a. £61,438,557 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council 

estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A (2) of the Act taking into 
account all precepts issued to it by Parish Councils. 

b. £56,463,465 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council 
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A (3) of the Act; 

 

Instalment Date Instalment Date

1 1 April 2021 6 1 September 2021

2 1 May 2021 7 1 October 2021

3 1 June 2021 8 1 November 2021

4 1 July 2021 9 1 December 2021

5 1 August 2021 10 1 January 2022

Dalton with Newton 2,355.65

Askam and Ireleth 1,097.84

Lindal and Marton 257.02

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



c. £4,975,092 being the amount, by which the aggregate at 3(a) above exceeds 
the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance with 
Section 31A (4) of the Act, as its Council Tax  requirement for the year; 

d. £252.60 being the amount at 3(c) above, all divided by the item at 1(a) above, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the 
Basic Amount of its Council Tax for the year (including Parish Council 
precepts); 

e. £141,634 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish Council 
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act; 

f. £245.41 being the Basic Amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings 
in those parts of its area to which no Parish precept relates as set out in 
Section 52ZX of the Act. 

 
3.8.4 Council Tax for parts of the Council’s Area: 
 

 
 
3.8.5 That it be noted that for the year 2021-2022, Cumbria County Council and the 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria have issued precepts to the 
Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 for each of the categories of dwellings as follows: 

 

 
 
 

Band Ratio Barrow
Dalton with 

Newton

Askam and 

Ireleth

Lindal and 

Marton

A 6/9 £163.61 £197.65 £173.94 £174.89

B 7/9 £190.87 £230.58 £202.92 £204.03

C 8/9 £218.14 £263.53 £231.91 £233.18

D 9/9 £245.41 £296.47 £260.90 £262.33

E 11/9 £299.95 £362.36 £318.88 £320.63

F 13/9 £354.48 £428.23 £376.85 £378.92

G 15/9 £409.02 £494.12 £434.84 £437.22

H 18/9 £490.82 £592.94 £521.80 £524.66

Band Ratio

Cumbria 

County 

Council

Police & Crime 

Commissioner 

for Cumbria

A 6/9 £998.69 £181.44

B 7/9 £1,165.15 £211.68

C 8/9 £1,331.59 £241.92

D 9/9 £1,498.04 £272.16

E 11/9 £1,830.93 £332.64

F 13/9 £2,163.84 £393.12

G 15/9 £2,496.73 £453.60

H 18/9 £2,996.08 £544.32

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



3.8.6 That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts of Council 
Tax for the year 2021-2022 for each of the categories of dwellings: 

 

 
 
3.8.7 Determine that, in accordance with the principles approved under Section 52ZB 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council’s Basic Amount of 

Council Tax for 2021-2022 of £245.41 compared to £240.41 for the previous 

year is not excessive. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendations.  The Borough Council Tax 

is determined by the Council Tax Requirement which comes through the budget 

setting process. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options; the Council has a statutory duty to set the 

Council Tax.  The Borough Council’s Council Tax Requirement is approved as 

part of the 2021-2022 budget setting process.  The other Preceptors demands 

are not subject to the approval of Barrow Borough Council.   

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Council Tax is a key aspect of the Borough’s budget financing.  The delivery 

of the Council Plan Priorities relies upon financial stability and resilience; the 

Council Tax Requirement is determined in achieving a balanced budget. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The Borough Council is the billing authority for the area and raises the whole 

Council Tax bills (for all applicable precepts) and collects the income due from 

taxpayers.  All Council Tax income is held within the Collection Fund.  The 

amount of Council Tax collected may vary from the budget and the results of the 

Collection Fund are shared between the major preceptors in future years; the 

Band Ratio Barrow
Dalton with 

Newton

Askam and 

Ireleth

Lindal and 

Marton

A 6/9 £1,343.74 £1,377.78 £1,354.07 £1,355.02

B 7/9 £1,567.70 £1,607.41 £1,579.75 £1,580.86

C 8/9 £1,791.65 £1,837.04 £1,805.42 £1,806.69

D 9/9 £2,015.61 £2,066.67 £2,031.10 £2,032.53

E 11/9 £2,463.52 £2,525.93 £2,482.45 £2,484.20

F 13/9 £2,911.44 £2,985.19 £2,933.81 £2,935.88

G 15/9 £3,359.35 £3,444.45 £3,385.17 £3,387.55

H 18/9 £4,031.22 £4,133.34 £4,062.20 £4,065.06

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



major preceptors are the Borough Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner 

for Cumbria and Cumbria County Council. 

 

7.1.2 The annual billing process is managed by the Revenues and Benefits 

Department.  It is labour intensive and time sensitive, involving external services 

including system support and bulk print and mail.  

 

Legal  

7.2.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Council to set a balanced budget and the 

Council Tax for the following financial year before the 11 March. 

 

7.2.2 Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 

present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the time 

of the meeting an amount of Council Tax is payable by them and has remained 

unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or Council Tax calculation, or 

recommendation or decision which might affect the making of any such 

calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting. 

 

7.2.3 In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 

practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies to 

them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It should be 

noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these matters. 

 

7.2.4 Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, unless 

any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 applied to them 

at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was the subject of 

consideration at the meeting.   

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the recommendations 
have no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Council Tax is not set in a 

timely manner. 

Disruption to the 

administrative 

arrangements relating to 

the collection of Council 

Tax that have cost 

implications. 

 

The Council has a legal 

duty to provide a range 

of statutory services 

(such as refuse 

Timely annual billing 

process. 

 

Budget Council meeting 

to set the Council Tax is 

arranged as early as 

practicable. 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



collection and 

homelessness 

prevention) and is not 

absolved from its duty 

because of the late 

setting of the Council 

Tax.  It also has to pay 

the monies due to the 

precepting authorities 

whether or not it collects 

any Council Tax. 

 
Contact Officers  

S M Roberts, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



 

Barrow Borough Council  

Full Council  

25th February 2021 

Appointment of Independent Person(s) 
 

   

Report from:   Debbie Storr, Head of Legal and Governance 

(Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    All 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Localism Act 2011(“the Act”) created the role of Independent Person who 

must be consulted at various stages of the process when dealing with 

allegations of misconduct by district or parish councillors. 

 

1.2 This report asks Council to consider the appointment of an Independent 

Person and reserve Independent Person in accordance with the Act for code 

of conduct matters and matters relating to Officer Employment Procedural 

Rules. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Council appoints Peter Kuit as Independent 

Person and Steve Forster Reserve Independent Person as detailed in the 

report on the basis of a fixed term of up to 4 years (two years, with 

delegation to the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chair/Vice 

Chair of Audit and Governance Committee to extend for a further two 

years). 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  Under the Localism Act 2011, the Authority is required to appoint at least one 

Independent Person (IP) who must be consulted by the authority before it 

makes a finding as to whether a member and co-opted member has failed to 

comply with the Code of Conduct, or decides on action to be taken in respect 

of that member.  The IP may also be consulted by the Authority in respect of 

standards complaints at any other stage and by a member or co-opted 

member of the Borough Council or of a parish or town council against whom a 

complaint has been made. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



 
3.2 As a result of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2015, Independent Persons now have an additional formal 

statutory role.  These regulations provide that where a decision to dismiss any 

statutory officer is to be undertaken by the Council, prior to making such a 

decision, the Council must invite at least two Independent Persons to be 

members of a Panel to consider the matter, and take any recommendations 

from that Panel into account before making the final decision. These 

provisions are incorporated into the Council’s constitution 

 
3.3 In September 2020 Council extended the appointment of Mr Stephen Murray 

Independent Person for a period up to 1 October 2021, whilst a recruitment 

exercise was undertaken.  The Council extends its thanks to Mr Murray for his 

work as Independent Person for Barrow Borough Council since his 

appointment in 2015 and for the duration of his term. 

 
3.4 The legislation gives the Council discretion as to the number of IPs, it can 

appoint but the best practice recommendations from the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life recommend that Local Authorities should have 

access to at least two Independent Persons. That Committee are also seeking 

an amendment to the Localism Act 2011 to set a two-year fixed term for an 

Independent Person (renewable once).   

 
3.5 The legislation states that IP appointments are subject to advertisement, the 

completion of an application form and approval by a majority of members of 

the Council.  An advertisement was placed in the Westmorland Gazette and 

North Evening Mail on 18 and 19 November respectively, and on the Council’s 

website and pushed out further between those dates and the closing date on 

11 January. Following a short listing process qualifying applicants were 

interviewed by a panel which included 3 members (cross party) drawn from 

the Audit and Governance Committee.  The selection criteria for the role is 

attached as Appendix 1 for information. 

 
3.6 There are legal exclusions to such appointments. A person cannot be 

appointed as an Independent Person if they are or were within a period of five 
years prior to the appointment: 

 

 a member, co-opted member or officer of the authority. 

 A member, co-opted member or officer of a parish council in the Borough 
Council’s area, or a relative or close friend of the above. 

 
3.7 The Interview Panel concluded that both Mr Kuit and Mr Forster met the 

requirements and criteria for the role. Mr Kuit has a good working knowledge 

of local government having had a career as a chartered town planner and as a 

corporate manager.  His working experience has included carrying out 

investigations into complaints and allegations against senior officers and 

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



members.  Mr Forster is currently volunteering as a radio presenter on local 

radio and has training in mediation and conflict resolution. He has been a 

school governor for over 12 years and sat as Chairman of staff and pupil 

discipline committee.  

 

3.8  Members are invited to appoint Mr Kuit as Independent Person and Mr Foster 

as reserve Independent Person for a term of up to 4  years (two years, with 

delegation to the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chair/Vice-Chair of 

Audit and Governance Committee to extend for a further two years. 

 

3.9 The Council’s existing Independent Person will continue in his role until 1 

October, and this will enable some succession planning/training. 

 

3.10 Group Leaders were notified of the recommendations prior to the report being 

finalised and have raised no concerns.  

 

4.0  Alternative Options  

4.1 The position of Independent Person is a statutory position which the Council is 

required to have. 

 

5.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

5.1 Good governance underpins the delivery of the Council Plan priorities. 

 

6.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

6.1 The role is a voluntary role but the Independent Persons may claim any 

reasonable travel and subsistence expenses in carrying out their role. 

 

7.0 Legal  

7.1 Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 requires a relevant authority to make 

provision for the appointment of at least one Independent Person “whose 

views are to be sought, and taken into account, by the authority before it 

makes its decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate”.  

 

7.2 The Localism Act does not prescribe a time limit on the terms of office of 

independent persons and these are therefore within the discretion of the 

Council. The recommendation seeks appointment for 2 years with potential to 

extend for a further two years. Whilst not yet having legal force it is proposed 

that these appointments be made on this basis subject to the legal ability to do 

so/legislative prohibition to an extension and continuing to quality as per the 

legal requirements of the Localism Act 2011. 

  

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 

8.0 Equality and Diversity  

8.1 The report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 
 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

No Independent Person is 
appointed 

The Council would not be 
compliant with the 
legislation. The position is 
a statutory role and relates 
to dealing with members 
code of conduct 
complaints 
 

Make appointment in 
accordance with legislative  
requirements ; 
 

 
Contact Officers  

Debbie Storr, Head of Legal & Governance: dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices   

1 Independent Person Selection Criteria 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background 

document  

Where it is available  

1. Minutes of Full Council – 

September 2020 

 

 

2. Local Government Ethical 

Standards  - A Review by 

the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life 

 

 

3. Report and Minutes of 

Audit and Governance 

Committee – October 

2020 

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx

?CId=137&MId=474&Ver=4 

 

 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploa

ds/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_C

O_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Stan

dards_v4_WEB.PDF 

 
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g477/Publi

c%20reports%20pack%2001st-Oct-

2020%2014.00%20Audit%20and%20Governance%20Co

mmittee.pdf?T=10 

 

   

  

Page 78

Agenda Item 9

mailto:dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=474&Ver=4
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=474&Ver=4
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g477/Public%20reports%20pack%2001st-Oct-2020%2014.00%20Audit%20and%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g477/Public%20reports%20pack%2001st-Oct-2020%2014.00%20Audit%20and%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g477/Public%20reports%20pack%2001st-Oct-2020%2014.00%20Audit%20and%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g477/Public%20reports%20pack%2001st-Oct-2020%2014.00%20Audit%20and%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=10


 

APPENDIX 1 

 
Independent Person 
Selection Criteria  
 
Skills and Competencies 
 
The Independent Person will have: 
 

 a keen interest in standards in public life; 

 a wish to serve the local community and uphold local democracy; 

 the ability to be objective, independent and impartial; 

 sound decision making skills; and 

 leadership qualities, particularly in respect of exercising sound judgement. 
 
The Independent Person will: 
 

 be a person in whose impartiality and integrity the public can have confidence; 

 understand and comply with confidentiality requirements; 

 have a demonstrable interest in local issues; 

 have an awareness of the importance of ethical behaviours; and 

 be a good communicator. 
 

Desirable Additional Criteria 
 

 working knowledge/experience of local government or other public service and/or 
of large complex organisations and awareness of and sensitivity to the political 
process. 

 

 knowledge and understanding of judicial/quasi-judicial or complaints processes. 
 
You should demonstrate in your application how you meet the above criteria as this 

will assist the short-listing process. 
 
Means of assessment will be by application form and by interview. 
 
NOTE: It is expected that the appointed Independent Person and “Reserve” will be 

contactable at all times during normal working hours by telephone or by 
email and to be available to attend hearings which may have to be convened 
at relatively short notice. 

 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	7 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT -  HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2021-2022 AND BUDGET  PROPOSALS 2021-2022
	Housing Revenue Account 2021-2022
	APPENDIX 1 - HRA Budget 2021-2022
	Budget Proposals 2021-2022 final
	Appendix 1 Subjective
	Appendix 2 Objective
	Appendix 3 Year on Year Comparison
	Appendix 4 Fees and Charges
	Appendix 5 Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix 6 Earmarked Reserves

	8 COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2021-2022
	9 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON(S)

